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  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 1 

  First of all, we apologize for being 2 

late, but hopefully as a result, we'll move faster 3 

now.  Thank you.  Yesterday we began the Category 2 4 

hearing for Mt. Airy.  We had to convene to a closed 5 

session, closed executive session to take information 6 

of a confidential nature, and we are now reconvening 7 

for the purpose of hearing the Applicant's 8 

presentation.   9 

  Ann, do you have --- Frank or Ann, do you 10 

have any additional information you want to start 11 

with? 12 

  ATTORNEY DONAGHUE: 13 

  No, other than we could turn it over to 14 

the traffic. 15 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 16 

  The traffic.  Why don't we do that?  Mr. 17 

Federico, would you mind coming up, please? 18 

  MR. FEDERICO: 19 

  Thank you very much.  Good afternoon.  My 20 

name is Al Federico.  I'm project manager from 21 

McCormick Taylor, responsible for review of the 22 

traffic information submitted by the Applicant to the 23 

Gaming Board.  This review included evaluating the 24 

study for conformance with applicable standards, 25 
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validation of the traffic data.  The evaluation of the 1 

improvements proposed as part of the application, as 2 

well as completing a site visit and coordinating with 3 

the local PennDOT district and municipality. 4 

  A preliminary review of the traffic 5 

information submitted by the Applicant was completed 6 

in July.  This was followed up by a more detailed 7 

review in November, and an addendum considering some 8 

additional information submitted by the Applicant in 9 

November --- at the end of November.   10 

  This study submitted on behalf of Mt. 11 

Airy Lodge was an extensive study in the scope and 12 

area of the study, the 12 intersections and two 13 

primary accesses to Woodland Road.  I would point out 14 

that at this point, Woodland Road is a local road, and 15 

now it was turned back from PennDOT to the township 16 

recently.  The analysis only addressed two periods, 17 

weekday evening and Saturday peak, which they 18 

considered midday at that point.  And the traffic 19 

estimates for this development were based on a study 20 

of the Dover Downs facility in Newark, Delaware.  21 

  The peak generation that was estimated 22 

for this facility was during the Saturday peak, and 23 

that was 1,100 vehicles during the peak hour.  It 24 

should be noted that this generation combined the 25 
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hotel and the gaming facility, so there was no 1 

additional traffic assumed to be for the hotel, 2 

specifically, beyond the gaming --- what was 3 

associated with the gaming facility, because Dover 4 

Downs does have a hotel associated with it. 5 

  There are several proposed improvements 6 

associated --- or identified in the study.  These are 7 

primarily turning lanes or signal installations.  8 

Additionally, the Applicant has proposed to widen a 9 

significant portion of Woodland Road.  Again, turning 10 

lanes at several intersections, 611 and Woodland, 940 11 

and Carlton, and a new traffic signal at 611 and 314. 12 

  The Applicant had also proposed to make 13 

some minor paint and signal modifications at the 14 

Interchange 298, the Scott Run Interchange from I-80 15 

to 611.  However, the local PennDOT district, and we 16 

concur, were not supportive of those proposed changes. 17 

It's my understanding, is the Applicant is looking at 18 

something more substantial.   19 

  Additionally, as requested by the local 20 

PennDOT district, the Applicant completed an 21 

evaluation of the five points intersection in Mt. 22 

Pocono.  That was noted in the previous testimony.  23 

However, other than identifying the impacts and saying 24 

that they will contribute approximately five percent 25 
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increase in the traffic at that intersection.  No 1 

additional mitigation was proposed within the study 2 

that was submitted. 3 

  So as we said, the Applicant completed an 4 

extensive study.  However, there are several 5 

locations, primarily five points, and the I-80 6 

Interchange to 611, where additional evaluation needs 7 

to be done as to mitigation.  Thank you. 8 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 9 

  Any questions for Mr. Federico?  You're 10 

going to be here for a little while, right, Mr. 11 

Federico? 12 

  MR. FEDERICO: 13 

  Yes. 14 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 15 

  Okay.  Thank you.  We may call you back 16 

up after we hear from the Applicant's traffic expert. 17 

Okay.  Anything else from Staff before we ---? 18 

  ATTORNEY DONAGHUE: 19 

  Go ahead and turn it over to the 20 

Applicant. 21 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 22 

  Okay.  Thank you.  Please. 23 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 24 

  Good afternoon.  John Donnelly, Chairman 25 
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Decker, Members of the Commission.  John Donnelly on 1 

behalf of Louis DeNaples and the Applicant, Mt. Airy 2 

Number One, LLC.  We will --- 3 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 4 

  Mr. Donnelly, just one second.  Are there 5 

any additional witnesses that you need to have sworn 6 

in today? 7 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 8 

  I'm sorry? 9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 10 

  Are there any additional witnesses that 11 

we need to swear in to swear in today?  Is anyone here 12 

who is going to testify today that hasn't been sworn 13 

in yesterday?  Could you rise, please?  Thank you. 14 

------------------------------------------------------ 15 

WITNESSES SWORN EN MASSE 16 

------------------------------------------------------ 17 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 18 

  I'm sorry, Mr. Donnelly.  Go ahead.  My 19 

fault. 20 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 21 

  I'm going ask the Commission's 22 

indulgence, we'll be sitting rather than standing 23 

because of the cramped area.  We're going to try to be 24 

as brief as possible today.  I know everyone says an 25 
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hour and a half.  I think we can do this in less than 1 

an hour and a half. 2 

  I want to thank the Staff for the work 3 

they've done.  I know I've said that before, but this 4 

is an enormous and fatiguing process.  We all know 5 

that.  Staff has been great throughout this process.  6 

And again, I can't say enough.  I mean, we get calls 7 

late at night.  It's stunning.  So it's been a good 8 

group to work for and we appreciate that. 9 

  I want to address, first of all, the 10 

scope of Mr. DeNaples' businesses.  Also, briefly talk 11 

about his character, and thirdly, talk about this 12 

project, very briefly.  The scope --- 13 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 14 

  Mr. Donnelly, you don't have to stand if 15 

you don't want to.  If you're comfortable sitting, 16 

please. 17 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 18 

  Oh, thank you.  The scope of this project 19 

is --- of the other businesses that Mr. DeNaples is 20 

involved in is almost impossible, certainly impossible 21 

for me to put in words.  I tried to, last April, and 22 

was incapable, I know Mr. DeNaples put me in his truck 23 

and drove me around his landfills, his auto parts 24 

dealer, his quarry.  And it's so gargantuan and 25 
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mammoth, that I couldn't express it.  And because of 1 

that, we had a DVD, a short DVD made that will give 2 

you a little feel of that.   3 

  And I'd like to ask Pete to run that 4 

right now.  All right.  I'll tell you what ---.   5 

VIDEO PRESENTATION 6 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: 7 

  Good morning, DeNaples. 8 

  MR. DENAPLES: 9 

  DeNaples, may I help you. 10 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: 11 

  We're there at three o'clock in the 12 

morning. 13 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: 14 

  Good morning, DeNaples. 15 

  MR. DENAPLES: 16 

  DeNaples, may I help you? 17 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: 18 

  We need to know the fax first. 19 

  VIDEO VOICEOVER: 20 

  There's a reason why Louis DeNaples is 21 

one of Pennsylvania's most successful businessman.  22 

How he presides over nationally recognized companies 23 

that deal with complex, highly regulated industries.  24 

He works at it.  And he makes it his business to know 25 
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his businesses 1 

  MR. DENAPLES: 2 

  It's my hobby.  And you know, if you're a 3 

golfer, you want to be the best golfer, you better go 4 

play 10, 12 hours a day.  Okay.  If you want to be the 5 

best businessman, you better work on it hard.  6 

  VIDEO VOICEOVER: 7 

  Those closest to him have enormous 8 

respect for his devotion to his large tightly knit 9 

family, his business expertise and his work ethic. 10 

  MR. LOMBARDI:  11 

  I call him the business genius.  Genius 12 

is nothing more than perseverance in disguise.  And 13 

believe me, Louis has perseverance. 14 

  MS. MUKDASATIT: 15 

  Very, very demanding.  That's all I can 16 

tell you.  But one thing, he brings the best out of 17 

everybody. 18 

  VIDEO VOICEOVER: 19 

  His success is the stuff of Hollywood 20 

scripts.  Born in poverty and unable to afford 21 

college, this ex-serviceman began by taking the things 22 

that others were throwing away and turning them into 23 

gold.  It started with auto wrecks and auto parts and 24 

grew into state-of-the-art landfills, quarries and 25 
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related businesses.  Today DeNaples presides over a 1 

remarkably diverse business empire of nearly 90 2 

businesses with combined value of approximately $2 3 

billion.  It includes banking interests, one of the 4 

largest John Deere construction and industrial 5 

equipment dealerships in the nation, motorcycle 6 

dealerships, forestry and utility equipment 7 

dealerships, metal processing and recycling 8 

operations, and estimated land holdings of 35,000 9 

acres. 10 

  Louis DeNaples made his mark in highly 11 

regulated industries.  He operates two landfills, one 12 

in Dunmore and one in Schuylkill County.  They safely 13 

handle 5,000 tons of trash per day, employing more 14 

than 136 workers and 150 trucks and pieces of 15 

equipment, worth an estimated $75 million.  Best of 16 

all, the landfills became the first in America to be 17 

ISO 14,000 certified, an international certification 18 

that signifies the very highest standards in the 19 

industry. 20 

  MR. MCDONELL: 21 

  That is a whole different level of 22 

standards.  Once you step out on that stage, you can't 23 

leave it, because you have to get re-certified every 24 

six months.  This was now a brave new world for a 25 
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landfill operation in Pennsylvania.  The standards had 1 

become staggeringly more complex than they had been 2 

previously.   3 

  Louis wanted to move beyond the standards 4 

that were required by that new body of complex 5 

regulations.  His reasoning was simple.  If this 6 

landfill performs at a level far above what state 7 

regulations require, then it will never be in trouble 8 

in terms of its performance against state regulations. 9 

It's a very good business.   10 

  VIDEO VOICEOVER: 11 

  Many of DeNaples businesses support each 12 

other.  At Keystone Landfill, for example, DeNaples 13 

started a quarry to support the landfill.  The 14 

landfill's methane gas powers an electric generating 15 

plant at the site and creates enough electricity to 16 

supply nearly 40,000 homes. 17 

  MR. MCDONNELL: 18 

  I think Louis is one of the most 19 

profoundly intelligent businessmen I've had the good 20 

fortune to meet. 21 

  VIDEO VOICEOVER: 22 

  Landfills aren't the only regulated 23 

industry in which he operates.  DeNaples also is 24 

chairman of the First National Community Bank, 25 
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headquartered in Dunmore, Pennsylvania.  When he took 1 

over in 1988, the bank had four branches, 90 employees 2 

and $158 million in assets.  Today, First National 3 

Community Bank has 16 branches, 234 employees and $1 4 

billion in assets.  5 

  Since 1972, DeNaples has been subject to 6 

the regulatory approval process of the Office of the 7 

Controller of Currency, the Securities and Exchange 8 

Commission, and the FDIC.  They have consistently 9 

granted the regulatory approvals for him to exercise 10 

authority and control over the bank's growing assets. 11 

  By any standard, DeNaples' business 12 

career is a remarkable success, but success has its 13 

own important meaning for him. 14 

  MR. DENAPLES: 15 

  Success is when you die, if you go up or 16 

you go down.  That's what success is.  If you go up 17 

you're successful, if you go down though you missed 18 

it. 19 

  VIDEO VOICEOVER: 20 

  Philanthropy has been a hallmark of his 21 

businesses, which contribute substantial sums each 22 

year to various charities throughout northeastern 23 

Pennsylvania.  He serves on the Board of Scranton Prep 24 

and the University of Scranton, Blue Cross and the 25 
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Community Medical Center, the St. Francis Soup 1 

Kitchen, and Allied Health Services.  He has raised 2 

and contributed to countless charitable causes, often 3 

anonymously. 4 

  MR. DENAPLES: 5 

  Every person has an obligation to give 6 

back to some percentage.  Some more than the others, 7 

you know.  A guy makes a dollar, you should at least 8 

give ten cents away. 9 

  VIDEO VOICEOVER: 10 

  A track record of phenomenal business 11 

success, a sterling personal and professional 12 

reputation and an enviable record of working for the 13 

betterment of his community and his fellow citizens.  14 

Louis DeNaples now brings his considerable energies to 15 

the challenge of building and operating a world-class 16 

resort in the Poconos. 17 

  MR. DENAPLES: 18 

  That place will be built to the highest 19 

standards.  It'll be operated to the highest 20 

standards, and it will be successful.  I will make 21 

sure it's successful.  And by that being successful, 22 

everybody will be successful.  It's a domino effect. 23 

END OF VIDEO PRESENTATION 24 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 25 
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  Thank you.  I hope that gives you some 1 

idea of the scope of the operations.  You really can't 2 

appreciate it until Louis takes you in his truck to 3 

the top of one of those mountains and starts down, and 4 

you say hold it.   5 

  I'd also like to point out to this Board 6 

that we --- there's been an outpouring in this 7 

community of support for this project and for Louis 8 

personally.  We have submitted, as you know, at the 9 

public hearings in Split Rock last April.  A number of 10 

people come forward in support of this project and in 11 

support of Louis DeNaples personally. 12 

  Since then, we've had submitted over 260 13 

letters of recommendation, some of which we're 14 

throwing up on the PowerPoint today, personally 15 

attesting to Louis's own personal good character, and 16 

also supporting the project.  We also ask today, a 17 

person who is very close to Louis and who Louis helped 18 

start in a business to address how Louis helped him in 19 

the beginning of business, and his own opinion as to 20 

Louis's character.  And that's --- Peter Hurst is the 21 

chairman and CEO of the Community Bank.  Peter? 22 

  MR. HURST: 23 

  Thank you.  Good afternoon.  My name is 24 

Peter Hurst.  I'm the president and CEO of the 25 
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Community's Bank, which is based in Bridgeport, 1 

Connecticut.  The Community's Bank is certified by the 2 

Connecticut Minority Supplier Development Council and 3 

by the U.S. Treasury Department as a minority business 4 

enterprise.  We're also certified by the Treasury 5 

Department as a community development financial 6 

institution.    7 

  I'm also an attorney licensed to practice 8 

law in the District of Columbia.  I have never had any 9 

involvement in the gaming industry and know little or 10 

nothing about it.   11 

  I first met Louis DeNaples in 1995 when 12 

we began to serve together on the Board of Trustees of 13 

the University of Scranton, and on the Board's finance 14 

committee.  I've developed a great respect for Louis, 15 

not only for his willingness to contribute his time to 16 

the university, but also for his incredible business 17 

acumen.   18 

  In 2000, I developed a concept to create 19 

a minority bank that would be headquartered in the 20 

City of Bridgeport, Connecticut and have branches in 21 

Connecticut's urban centers.  Bridgeport, Hartford and 22 

Bloomfield.  The idea was to incorporate a start-up 23 

bank that would serve minority individuals, minority 24 

businesses, as well as others in the community.  I did 25 
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not lack in ambition, desire or intelligence, but I 1 

did need help with the investment capital, and I had 2 

never run a bank. 3 

  For this reason, I approached Louis, 4 

because of his experience at the First National 5 

Community Bank.  I've had a career as an investment 6 

banker on Wall Street and have raised hundreds and 7 

millions, if not billions of dollars for others.  8 

However, one of the hardest tasks in America is for a 9 

minority entrepreneur to attract equity capital.  And 10 

equity investors making a bet on people, and sadly a 11 

lot of people in institutions in this country find it 12 

difficult to believe that they can make money by 13 

betting on a minority entrepreneur.   14 

  It is in this context that I approached 15 

Louis about investing in the bank and providing 16 

assistance.  Louis immediately agreed to provide 17 

assistance in the creation of the Community's Bank.  18 

More importantly, Louis became a significant investor 19 

and advisor to the bank.  In fact, other than myself, 20 

Louis was the first investor in the Community's Bank.  21 

  When Louis informed me of his decision to 22 

invest in the bank, he told me something I'll never 23 

forget.  He said, I invest in people not concepts, and 24 

I believe in you.  Louis is a significant owner of the 25 
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Community's Bank, although the majority owners of the 1 

bank are minority members of our community.  2 

Currently, Louis's son serves on the bank's board.  3 

The bank, which is the only minority-owned bank in the 4 

State of Connecticut, has been recognized by the U.S. 5 

Treasury Department for our lending activities in 6 

Connecticut’s urban markets.  And we're poised to grow 7 

dramatically by providing full-on banking solutions 8 

for consumers and businesses. 9 

  Louis's knowledge of the banking industry 10 

and his willingness to assist in the start-up and 11 

operation of our business made it possible.  More over 12 

his ongoing assistance has literally saved the bank 13 

hundreds of thousands of dollars in learning curve 14 

knowledge.  He has been extremely helpful in assisting 15 

the bank in developing programs that ensure that we're 16 

in compliance with all of the myriad banking 17 

regulations.   18 

  In my dealings with Louis, I have found 19 

him to be a man of extreme integrity and good 20 

character.  And from where I sit, most importantly, 21 

without Louis DeNaples, the Community's Bank would not 22 

exist.   23 

  Ladies and gentlemen, let me close with a 24 

final personal note.  I'm one of the controlling 25 
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shareholders of the Community's Bank, and I intend to 1 

set-up a voting trust for my shares in the bank, 2 

should I die before my teenage children become adults. 3 

The ultimate beneficiaries of this trust will be my 4 

children, but I have asked Louis to be a trustee of 5 

this voting trust once it's set up.  6 

  My decision to have Louis as a trustee, 7 

once this voting trust is created is, in my view, a 8 

vote on his integrity and character.  He is a man 9 

whose judgment and character I trust implicitly.  I 10 

urge you to find him a suitable candidate for this 11 

gaming license.  Thank you. 12 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 13 

  Thank you, Peter.  With that, I'd like to 14 

introduce Louis DeNaples. 15 

  MR. DENAPLES: 16 

  Good afternoon, Chairman Decker and 17 

members of the Pennsylvania Gaming and Control Board. 18 

I am happy to appear before you today, at the end of a 19 

process that began formally for us on December 21st, 20 

2005, when we filed our application for the license 21 

for Mt. Airy.  That filing was a milestone.  And a 22 

process that began over two years earlier, when I 23 

first learned that there would be gaming in 24 

Pennsylvania. 25 
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  I saw the new legislation as a monumental 1 

opportunity and, in my opinion, an extraordinary event 2 

for the Commonwealth.  I immediately began researching 3 

potential sites throughout the Commonwealth.  My 4 

investigation took me to Pittsburgh, Gettysburg, 5 

Allentown, Bethlehem area, Philadelphia, and other 6 

potential sites.  Ultimately, it brought me back to 7 

where I started, the Pocono Mountains. 8 

  The next stop on the journey was to 9 

determine what site to choose.  I looked at all the 10 

potential sites in the Poconos, including Pocono 11 

Manor.  I finally choose the site of the former Mt. 12 

Airy Lodge, principally, because it had all of the 13 

pluses of a Poconos tourist's destination and some 14 

major extras.   15 

  It had the history, the name recognition, 16 

the location and an 18-hole championship golf course 17 

with an unparalleled reputation.  In its hey days, Mt. 18 

Airy was known as the premier resort in the heart of 19 

the Poconos.  I had three criteria's for my selection 20 

of Mt. Airy.  21 

  First, the Mt. Airy site was the perfect 22 

vehicle for the arrival of a major tourist 23 

destination.  Second, good traffic access, existing 24 

infrastructure, including sewage and water that would 25 
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allow for immediate development and expansion in an 1 

environmentally sensitive area.   2 

  Finally, I would not undertake this 3 

project, unless my neighbors, my community and my 4 

family supported it.  I grew up in northeastern 5 

Pennsylvania and have been blessed with a good deal of 6 

success.  This is where I raised my family.  All seven 7 

of my children attended and graduated from 8 

universities throughout the Commonwealth of 9 

Pennsylvania.  My family and I are part of the fabric 10 

of this community. 11 

  This led to a great deal of 12 

investigation, as to what kind of project would fit in 13 

with the Poconos and our community.  One that we can 14 

all be proud of.  We have a continually developing 15 

goal that we have emphasized in the April hearings to 16 

compliment, not to compete.  These are not merely 17 

words.  What they mean to me is that through this 18 

project we can enhance the whole tourism base in the 19 

Poconos. 20 

  I know that this project will be hugely 21 

successful from an economic point of view.  However, 22 

in my opinion, it won't be a success, unless the 23 

entire Pocono community in northeastern Pennsylvania 24 

flourishes as well.   25 
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  I believe that the Mt. Airy project does 1 

all of that.  Our success will only be complete if it 2 

fulfills my responsibility to see that everyone in our 3 

diverse community has the opportunity to participate.  4 

This is what I have aimed for, and I believe that with 5 

our team, we'll hit the mark.   6 

  We have assembled a world class team that 7 

includes top casino experts, such as Paul Henderson 8 

and Bill Callnin, who have agreed to assist me in 9 

making this dream a reality.  You will hear from some 10 

of our members today. 11 

  My past success come from hiring and 12 

retaining people who can get the job done and do it 13 

while respecting all of our men and women who service 14 

our customers every day.  An example of this is what 15 

you heard from Bill McDonnell in the video about the 16 

landfill business.  When I first entered the landfill 17 

business, it was unregulated, and required little more 18 

than hard work and some business sense to make it 19 

profitable.  It is no longer that way.  It is now a 20 

highly regulated industry with countless of statutory 21 

and compliance requirements. 22 

  I know that having good people, keeping 23 

them happy through compensation, increasing 24 

responsibilities and allowing the persons to operate 25 
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is key.  This is what motivates me personally, knowing 1 

that from our efforts, we have been able to create 2 

businesses that give people good jobs and allow them 3 

to raise their families.   4 

  This idea is permanently in place in my 5 

other businesses and will continue as part of the Mt. 6 

Airy operation.  I also know that as with any business 7 

is the buck stops here.  I am and will be ultimately 8 

responsible for that.  The construction, the opening 9 

and the operation of this facility.   10 

  All of my life, I followed some simple 11 

values, which revolve around God, family and work.  12 

One of those values I believe in is that firm promise 13 

is better than a written contract.  My children, they 14 

call me old school.  Old school I may be, but those 15 

ideas and values have served me well.   16 

  In April, I promise to you that if you 17 

select us, we will open and operate a permanent 18 

facility that will bring success to the Commonwealth, 19 

the Poconos and northeastern Pennsylvania.  I also 20 

promise that it will be operated to the highest degree 21 

of integrity and compliance. 22 

  Today, we will present those changes to 23 

our project since April, such as some additions to the 24 

team, the traffic studies, the financial projections, 25 
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the refinement of the casino design, our master plan 1 

development for the entire 890-acre site, diversity, 2 

and progress on financing.   3 

  We will also demonstrate that JPMorgan 4 

Chase has firmly committed to financing the entire 5 

Phase I of our facility.  This includes, a 400-room 6 

hotel, 70,000 square foot casino, 3,000 slot machines, 7 

four restaurants, 14,500 square feet of spa and 8 

entertainment lounge.   9 

  This three-year process that brought us 10 

to this day and this place, the nearly final step in 11 

your deliberation process, I ask you to conclude that 12 

the Mt. Airy project is the most deserving among the 13 

applicants for all of the reasons that you will hear 14 

today.  Including an important intangible, the people 15 

of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, through their 16 

legislators have permitted existing new experiment of 17 

casino gaming.  Not in order for Louis DeNaples or any 18 

other developer to become wealthy, but to use casino 19 

gaming as a catalyst for a redevelopment and a 20 

revival. 21 

  That is the plan that we have adopted and 22 

we believe that is the plan that this board should 23 

embrace.  If chosen, we will deliver.  With that, I 24 

want to present our project status, our team members, 25 
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who will tell you much about the new details of the 1 

progress we have made and the way we'll operate the 2 

casino.   3 

  First, I have said, we have all of our 4 

financing in place.  And here is Glen Carlin, the head 5 

of Global Gaming for JPMorgan, is here to tell you 6 

about their financing.  Glen? 7 

  MR. CARLIN: 8 

  Thank you.  Good afternoon.  My name is 9 

Glen Carlin.  I'm the managing director at JPMorgan 10 

responsible for the Gaming and Lodging Group within 11 

investment banking.  Our bank, JPMorgan Chase, is the 12 

third largest bank in the Country, and the market 13 

leader in arranging syndicated loans.  14 

  On September 25th we entered into a $400 15 

million commitment with Mt. Airy Number One LLC, whose 16 

sole member is Mr. Louis DeNaples.  I understand that 17 

this agreement has been provided to you.  The $400 18 

million commitment will cover the completion of Phase 19 

I of the facility, including the 400-room hotel tower, 20 

70,000 square foot casino and the other amenities that 21 

you'll hear about today. 22 

  This commitment is not conditioned upon 23 

the achievement of any projections.  Mr. DeNaples will 24 

personally enter into a completion guarantee that 25 
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ensures that the project is delivered in accordance 1 

with the plans provided to JPMorgan.   2 

  In closing, I'd like to say how pleased 3 

we are to be working with Mr. DeNaples on this 4 

important project. 5 

  MR. DENAPLES: 6 

  Thank you, Glen.  We are proud to be 7 

associated with JPMorgan.  Now, I'd like to introduce 8 

to you Al Magnotta, the civil engineer on our project 9 

and Dave Hemmler, our architect, will bring to you 10 

uptodate on the changes to our progress on the project 11 

since April.  Al? 12 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 13 

  Thank you, Mr. DeNaples.  Good afternoon 14 

to Chairman Decker, Commission members and Staff.  The 15 

testimony of my colleague, Mr. Hemmler, the project 16 

architect and myself will be very simple.  We will 17 

outline what Mt. Airy is doing right now to construct 18 

a $400 million permanent resort/casino, not what we 19 

plan to do if awarded a Category 2 license, or if and 20 

when we obtain all permits and approvals.  We've 21 

already done that, and we're well on our way. 22 

  On June 6th, the Paradise Township Board 23 

of Supervisors approved a preliminary land development 24 

plan for Mt. Airy.  Subsequently on June 30th of this 25 
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year, the supervisors approved the developer's 1 

agreement and issued a zoning permit to Mt. Airy, 2 

which signifies that all necessary permits and 3 

approvals were in place to complete construction.  4 

  This event was a culmination of a 5 

partnership with the township that started into 6 

January of 2005, to plan and build a world class 7 

Pocono destination resort.  8 

  The development process, especially in an 9 

environmentally sensitive area like the Pocono 10 

Mountain regions is time consuming and exacting.  To 11 

commence construction, we had secure 28 individual 12 

permits and approvals from numerous municipal, county 13 

and state regulatory agencies, including Paradise 14 

Township, Monroe County, Pennsylvania Department of 15 

Environmental Resources and the Delaware River Basin 16 

Commission.   17 

  As Mr. DeNaples has said, construction of 18 

the permanent resort and casino started on July 17th, 19 

2006.  A summary of the initial phase of the Mt. Airy 20 

complex, all of which are fully funded and in the 21 

construction process include casino space for 3,000 22 

slot machines, 400-room resort hotel rooms and suites. 23 

Four restaurants, including a 440-seat buffet, 142-24 

seat coffee shop, an 84-seat Italian restaurant, and 25 
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an 84-seat steakhouse. 1 

  Also included is a 275-seat casino lounge 2 

and nightclub and a 42-seat bar in the center of the 3 

casino floor.  Other amenities provided is a 14,500 4 

square foot spa, a 6,500 square foot three story 5 

indoor swimming pool.  Areas are provided for retail 6 

space, conference room, and a business center.  7 

  Parking will be provided for 2,232 8 

vehicles, including 441 spots under the casino, 697 9 

surface parking spaces and a standalone garage --- 10 

parking garage for 1,094 vehicles, which will be 11 

connected to the casino by a 31,000 square foot retail 12 

bridge.   13 

  Now, I'd like to ask Mr. Hemmler, the 14 

project architect, to give you specific architectural 15 

details about the features of the resort and casino. 16 

  MR. DENAPLES: 17 

  Thank you, Al.   18 

  MR. HEMMLER: 19 

  Thank you and good afternoon, Chairman 20 

Decker and members of the Commission and Staff.  I'm 21 

here to talk briefly about the status of the project 22 

and the latest developments.  From a hilltop approach 23 

overlooking the 18-hole golf course, and across a 24 

pristine 27-acre lake, the Mt. Airy Resort and Casino 25 
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arise six stories to a gable roof like that recalls 1 

the glamorous resorts of a more gilded age.  The hotel 2 

presents a new era of luxury for the Poconos.  Its 3 

gracious façade with touches of Victorian and 4 

classical architecture serves as a beacon to the 5 

surrounding mountain vistas, inviting visitors to an 6 

exciting Pocono experience. 7 

  The interior décor and colors of the 8 

hotel are now envisioned to explore the ambiance of 9 

the four seasons of the Poconos.  The hotel lobby has 10 

been refined in final design to embody casual 11 

elegance.  Upon entry to the hotel, we are greeted by 12 

a great three-bay double volume space of the grand 13 

lobby, designed with simplicity reminiscent of the 14 

powerful beauty of the Truscan architecture.  The 15 

stone, glass and fabric-walled lobby features uplift 16 

Crawford ceilings, supported by sturdy wood piers, all 17 

washed in natural sunlight from two-story wall of 18 

glass viewing the entry and the lake. 19 

  Guests are invited to relax in two lounge 20 

areas anchored by massively scaled fireplaces, 21 

complete with rough timber mantles and limestone 22 

surrounds.  Ahead, a pedestrian bridge with its glass 23 

railings, blinks the wings of the hotel on the second 24 

level and forms a gateway to the atrium and casino 25 
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beyond.   1 

  Perhaps, the most dramatic design 2 

development of the Mt. Airy experience is the curve 3 

linear casino.  A 370 foot by 200 foot space.  It is 4 

surrounded by an arcade of modern pilasters, which 5 

frame the entries of the restaurants and shops beyond. 6 

Overhead and illuminated Crawford ceiling provides a 7 

soft glow to the main gaming floor, the ambiance is 8 

upscale, elegant and fun, reminiscent of a fine club. 9 

The finishes include a warm patina of metals, woods 10 

and leathers.   11 

  A terrazzo curve linear walk forms the 12 

perimeter of the gaming areas and provides access to 13 

the never ending party of attractions beyond.  14 

Flanking the slots are a brand store, a jewelry 15 

boutique, the main cage, mini cage and Pennsylvania 16 

lottery stations.   17 

  Through the center of the casino is a 18 

bejeweled path illuminated by ceiling lights of 19 

suspended crystal beads that reflect the charge, 20 

excitement of the gaming floor.   21 

  The main slots areas are defined by rich 22 

colored and patterned carpet below, and are bathed in 23 

soft light from uplit Crawford ceilings above.  The 24 

slots are spaciously arranged and are positioned at 25 
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varying angles to the surrounding architecture and to 1 

each other. 2 

  A 275-seat nightclub and lounge provide 3 

entertainment in a fun and hip environment.  A 4 

dramatic circular bar composed of illuminated onyx and 5 

textured glass marks the center of the great space. 6 

The back bar is formed by a sculpture of glowing 7 

glass.  Dining venues include a restaurant buffet with 8 

a décor that reflects the Pocono Mountain setting. A 9 

24-hour diner featuring a fun 1950s motif.  Two 10 

upscale restaurants, one Italian and the other a 11 

steakhouse.  12 

  The décor of the Italian is contemporary 13 

and Tuscan.  The steakhouse is serenely elegant.  14 

Guestroom accommodations at the hotel are warm and 15 

stylish with comfortable furnishings and luxurious 16 

baths.  Guests are also served by a state-of-the-art 17 

destination spa and a four season pool.   18 

  Construction is scheduled to be complete 19 

in the fall of 2007.  At which time, and with your 20 

permission we will open the casino and support areas 21 

to accommodate 2,500 slot machines as shown.  That's 22 

just the start.  23 

  Construction will continue even after the 24 

casino opens, as I will shortly point out, and by the 25 
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end of the first year of operation in 2008, we will 1 

have expanded the casino to accommodate a total of 2 

3,000 slot machines, and expanded the hotel to a total 3 

of 400 rooms, and as Al has mentioned, a total of 4 

2,232 parking spaces.   5 

  Pete, if you can show the expansion 6 

slide, please?  The expansion is shown in the area of 7 

--- that's new on the slide in the darker yellow.  At 8 

the upper --- or the top of the slide, parking 9 

includes a standalone garage for 1,094 vehicles, which 10 

is connected to the casino by a dramatic new 31,000 11 

square foot retail bridge over Woodland Road, that 12 

features a bright array of shops, kiosks, café and 13 

eating space, to enjoy the views while walking to the 14 

expanded casino at the center of the slide. 15 

  Additionally, the hotel and spa areas, as 16 

you can see in the lower part of the slide, have been 17 

expanded as well up to now, 400 rooms.  Again, all by 18 

the end of 2008, it is financed and under 19 

construction. 20 

  Now, let me talk a little bit about Phase 21 

II.  The Phase II expansion, which you'll currently 22 

see shown in darker orange, will provide additional 23 

casino floor space to accommodate up to 5,000 slot 24 

machines and other games if and when permitted by 25 
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Pennsylvania law.  Additional restaurants and lounges 1 

to serve the anticipated growing number of guests and 2 

visitors.  A full suite of conference facilities, 3 

expanded shopping and arena.   4 

  All is a natural expansion of the casino. 5 

And again, connected to an expanded parking garage 6 

along with other amenities, as you can see, across 7 

Woodland Road. 8 

  Architectural planning for Phase II is 9 

underway at this time and allows for the Phase II 10 

addition to be constructed without interrupting Phase 11 

I operations.  Mt. Airy has committed financing for 12 

Phase II, which is projected to cost $100 million, 13 

bringing the total committed financing to $500 million 14 

to fully fund Phase I and II.  And I'll now ask Al 15 

Magnotta to come back and address some site work 16 

updates as well as construction.  Thank you. 17 

  MR. DENAPLES: 18 

  Thank you, David.   19 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 20 

  Thanks, Dave.  We are also actively 21 

engaged in two infrastructure projects.  We have 22 

obtained bids in the amount of $700 --- $350,000 for 23 

improvements to a utility extension and upgrades along 24 

Woodland Road, which is the main access road into the 25 
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resort.  These improvements will be paid for entirely 1 

by Mt. Airy. 2 

  Additionally, plans also have been 3 

submitted to PennDOT to upgrade several intersections, 4 

offsite intersections that are on the primary routes 5 

to our facility, and the construction estimate 6 

budgeted approaches $1.5 million for these offsite 7 

intersection improvements that will also be funded 8 

entirely by Mt. Airy.  Also, as noted in your traffic 9 

consultant's report, there's an issue of the five 10 

points intersection in Mt. Pocono Borough at the 11 

request of PennDOT.   12 

  We have provided them with a traffic 13 

impact study as to the impacts of our facility at that 14 

intersection.  We have a meeting with them.  We've had 15 

initial meetings with them, and we have had a --- we 16 

have a meeting scheduled with the Borough Council on 17 

December 11th of this year to discuss our mitigation 18 

efforts at that particular location. 19 

  To date LP Ciminelli is our project 20 

construction manager, has awarded contracts in the 21 

amount of $34 million, $34.2 million to 18 22 

subcontractors.  Of the amount of the contracts 23 

awarded $3.2 million have been executed with three MBE 24 

or WBE Enterprises. 25 
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  Of the contracts awarded at this time, 1 

the majority are for long lead specialized materials 2 

and equipment, such as structural steel, precast 3 

concrete planks and walls, heating, and ventilating 4 

and air conditioning equipment, elevators, 5 

transformers and switch gears, all of which have a 6 

very limited vendor base.   7 

  In addition, in conjunction with the 8 

Woodland Road project, which I spoke of before, we 9 

have a five percent MBE/WBE participation.  Currently, 10 

construction activities including the site, includes 11 

site work, storm water management facilities, 12 

underground electrical and mechanical systems, 13 

foundation walls, steel decking and structural steel 14 

erection. 15 

  The casino area and the hotel area will 16 

be enclosed from the weather during January 2007 and 17 

February 2007.  This will allow us to continue the 18 

construction of the interior during the winter season. 19 

Also, since April, work has been developed on a master 20 

plan for the Mt. Airy property that contemplates a 21 

total investment of $815 million in a mixed-use 22 

community approach.   23 

  The total land parcel amounts to 24 

approximately 890 acres of rolling up land streams and 25 
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valleys and a 27-acre lake adjacent to the resort and 1 

casino.  The master plan was created along the unique 2 

attributes of the property with the resort and the 3 

casino complex as its focus. 4 

  The planning process has taken into 5 

account numerous environmental concerns, such as 6 

wetland and watercourse protection and preservation. 7 

Best management practices are being initiated to 8 

manage storm water runoff, thereby reducing stream 9 

erosion and protecting the groundwater quality and 10 

quantity. 11 

  All areas of the Mt. Airy complex, 12 

including the 550 acres that will be permanently 13 

preserved as open spaces for recreational purposes 14 

will be linked by a hiking, biking trail system that 15 

will allow residents and guests to walk to neighboring 16 

communities and shop at the hotel casino complex.   17 

  The Mt. Airy resort master plan consists 18 

of seven village type communities.  Each nestled in 19 

its own unique setting.  Each village will have its 20 

own theme and caters to a different lifestyle.  For 21 

example, Mt. Airy Village will be a condominium and 22 

timeshare community located across from the hotel 23 

casino complex and other amenities.  A golf course 24 

community will be included near a proposed new  25 
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nine-hole golf course. 1 

  Woodland Village is the Mt. Airy resort 2 

gateway community comprising of commercial shopping  3 

--- a commercial shopping village surrounded by 4 

moderately priced townhouses located on a wooded slope 5 

overlooking the village.  Other areas planned include 6 

an equestrian oriented village and a community of 7 

single family homes sites on the eastern portion of 8 

the Mt. Airy property. 9 

  When fully developed the Mt. Airy project 10 

will represent a $1.2 billion investment that's 11 

designed to be the economic engine that will drive 12 

growth in the tourist and retail community and provide 13 

sufficient employment opportunities for the entire 14 

Pocono Mountain Region.  Thank you. 15 

  MR. DENAPLES: 16 

  Thank you, Al.   17 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 18 

  At this point, I'd like to take the 19 

opportunity to ask a gentleman from HRG Engineering 20 

Company to respond to some of the comments that were 21 

made this morning about our project.  Mr. John 22 

Ackerman. 23 

  MR. ACKERMAN: 24 

  Good afternoon, Chairman Decker, 25 
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Commission members, Staff.  I'm a professional 1 

engineer and professional geologist licensed in the 2 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.  I work for HRG, which 3 

is a consulting engineering firm in Martinsville, 4 

Pennsylvania.   5 

  In preparation of our reports, we have 6 

reviewed filings that Pocono Manor has made to 7 

Tobyhanna Township with the Commonwealth of 8 

Pennsylvania and the public filings that we were able 9 

to obtain with regard to their plans. 10 

  Initially, we were asked to look at the 11 

proposed development at Pocono Manor and issue a 12 

report to Mt. Airy as to the feasibility of the 13 

massive project suggest by Pocono Manor, and secondly 14 

to provide our estimate of the schedule for design, 15 

permitting and construction for completion of such a 16 

project.  We were also asked if it could be completed, 17 

as proposed. 18 

  We have issued two reports in this 19 

matter, which I believe the Board has.  We have, as 20 

expressed in our reports, grave concerns over three 21 

matters.  Wastewater, water and traffic.  First with 22 

wastewater, Pocono Manor proposes to engage in what is 23 

called an interbasin transfer of water.  That 24 

essentially means removing surface or groundwater 25 
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generated in one watershed or a sub watershed and 1 

discharging it into another watershed.  Pocono Manor 2 

is proposing to discharge a significant portion of the 3 

treated wastewater it generates into another 4 

watershed.  In effect, this will reduce the flows into 5 

Indian Run Creek, the waterway which it draws its 6 

water from. 7 

  Also important is that there is no 8 

showing in the papers that we have reviewed as to how 9 

the volumes of wastewater generated could be properly 10 

handled.  Pocono Manor's treatment plant is only 11 

permitted to discharge 140,000 gallons a day of 12 

treated wastewater, but it proposes to treat and 13 

discharge over 600,000 gallons per day. 14 

  It cannot, in our opinion, land apply, 15 

that is spray it onto the land and have it absorbed, 16 

that additional wastewater that it proposes to 17 

generate for its proposed completed project onto their 18 

existing lands, which include such land as the golf 19 

course that it has available for it.   20 

  As an aside, we do understand that the 21 

construction of their casino would consume a portion 22 

of one of the current golf courses, thereby reducing 23 

what appears to be the already inadequate land area to 24 

some lesser area. 25 
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  Finally, we have seen no evidence of any 1 

agreement with the Camelback ski area for snowmaking 2 

or other alternatives for land application within 3 

Pennsylvania, and any of the other public filings that 4 

we were able to obtain with regard to its plans. 5 

  There is no documentation that Pocono 6 

Manor has obtained permits for additional wastewater 7 

treatment beyond the 140,000 gallons per day currently 8 

permitted for stream discharge.  And if it exists, the 9 

Camelback option is the one that does create the 10 

interbasin transfer. 11 

  Second, for water sources, the proposed 12 

amount of water required to --- to feed the project, 13 

contemplate it, would reduce the base flow of volumes 14 

that are now supplying water into the Indian Run 15 

Creek.  And this has a possibility to threaten its 16 

designated use as a high quality stream.  Pocono Manor 17 

is proposing an increase of over 300 percent in the 18 

amount of water it will take out of the Indian Run 19 

system. 20 

  This is an extremely significant 21 

increase, and it may have the effect of lowering the 22 

water table and drawing up wetlands and associated 23 

waters that currently feed Indian Run Creek.  To date, 24 

we have seen no application to the Delaware River 25 
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Basin Commission.  And to our knowledge, there is no 1 

docket number noting a filing for additional 2 

withdrawals. 3 

  Finally, as to water, a proposal to draw 4 

water from one specific well is located in a fractured 5 

rock structure.  And this proposed withdrawal rate of 6 

water, it is significantly above what's expected.  I'm 7 

getting a little technical here, but --- for this type 8 

of underlying structure.   9 

  This one with a high water table in the 10 

area leads us to consider that the well is a surface 11 

water influenced well.  And we have found no evidence 12 

of an intent to verify or disprove this consideration. 13 

And this may constitute a possible public health 14 

concern. 15 

  Lastly, with traffic, we understand that 16 

the Applicant is proposing a re-alignment of 17 

Interstate 380 interchange with State Route 940.  To 18 

date, we have not seen a point of access study 19 

performed.  Now, point of access study is --- in our 20 

experience, would consume approximately 18 to 24 21 

months.  And it is a required pre-requisite to obtain 22 

permission to do any changes to the specific layout of 23 

the interchange or the adjacent limited access 24 

highway. 25 
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  Moreover, the proposal that we've 1 

reviewed requires the purchase of private property, by 2 

Pocono Manor, an event that may or may not occur.  3 

Finally, after approvals, construction of the ramp  4 

re-alignment itself would be required. 5 

  We have conservatively estimated that all 6 

this work cannot be completed before approximately 7 

July of 2011.  In conclusion, it is the opinion of HRG 8 

that the proposed Mt. Pocono project is extremely 9 

problematic, especially from an environmental point of 10 

view and uncertain to be feasible.   11 

  If, perhaps, it is determined to be 12 

feasible, it is, in our opinion --- it cannot be 13 

completed until July of 2011 at the earliest.  Thank 14 

you. 15 

  MR. DENAPLES: 16 

  Thank you, John. 17 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 18 

  Mr. Magnotta, I understand another 19 

question was raised today, and that was about the 20 

nearness of the highway to the Pocono Manor site.  How 21 

far is the Pocono Manor Site from the Mt. Airy site? 22 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 23 

  I'd say three and a half to four miles. 24 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 25 
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  How long would it take someone to drive 1 

that distance would you estimate? 2 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 3 

  Ten minutes. 4 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 5 

  Thank you. 6 

  MR. DENAPLES: 7 

  As you know, Paul Henderson joined us 8 

earlier this year.  He is here today to discuss the 9 

casino, our permanent facility and some new additions 10 

to the Mt. Airy team.  Paul? 11 

  MR. HENDERSON: 12 

  Thank you, Louis.  Good afternoon.  I'm 13 

here to talk about the operations of the casino.  Mt. 14 

Airy is a great design, and it's going to be a very 15 

exciting and successful casino.  I've been in and 16 

around casinos for 35 years.  I've worked in them, 17 

I've built them and I've opened them.  18 

  This is as exciting a project as I've 19 

ever had the pleasure of being involved with.  If you 20 

ever stayed at any of the great hotels and places like 21 

the Grand Canyon, Yosemite, Yellowstone, you have 22 

classic hotels in midst of a pristine environment.  23 

And that's the feeling we think you'll get when you 24 

walk into Mt. Airy.  It's a feeling of just wow. 25 
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  Let's remember that Mt. Airy's a 1 

permanent facility and gives it several advantages.  2 

First, the initial impression the patron gets will be 3 

of a destination resort complete with finishes in 4 

details.  This is important in giving a sense of 5 

elegance and sophistication.   6 

  And I want to emphasize this point.  It 7 

is not just a slot parlor grinding out a win.  Mt. 8 

Airy will be about much more than gaming.  It will be 9 

entirely consistent with the leisure and recreation 10 

tradition of the Poconos.  The indoor pool and the 11 

spa, the championship golf course, great restaurants 12 

and bars and the exciting lounge will all add to the 13 

complete resort package. 14 

  This is an all new construction, not a 15 

rehab, not an add-on.  The old Mt. Airy has been 16 

completely demolished with the exception of the 17 

wastewater treatment plant and the golf course.   18 

  I would like to address a couple of 19 

points regarding the casino floor.  First, we have 20 

enough space to accommodate 2,500 slot machines.  We 21 

have 70,000 square feet of casino floor.  And let me 22 

make it clear, the 70,000 square feet, the shaded area 23 

you see on the slide, is actual gaming area.  It does 24 

not share space with any facility support areas like 25 
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the cage or the vault or marketing areas. 1 

  Second, the slot floor has been designed 2 

for the comfort of our guests.  The main aisles are 10 3 

to 12 feet wide, there's four feet between the backs 4 

of every slot chair.  This is in full compliance with 5 

Pennsylvania's gaming regulations. 6 

  We've designed the space to provide 28 7 

square feet per machine.  This assures more than ample 8 

room for our guests and is well in excess of the 9 

guidelines and the accepted practices of the industry. 10 

  The casino floor was laid out with the 11 

help of IGT, Bill Callnin, Vic Weclew and Butch 12 

Witcher.  These guys are real pros.  I'm delighted the 13 

job they have done.  Bill is here today and has helped 14 

put together over 12 casinos.  Vic is also here, and 15 

has opened more than 20 casinos in his career.  Butch 16 

was here with us last April, and is the dean of casino 17 

designers, having cut his teeth with the first modern 18 

casinos in the east coast, and then consulted on many 19 

number of floor designs throughout the country. 20 

As you know, IGT is the number one manufacturer of 21 

slots in the world today and a great expert. 22 

  Since I testified before the Board last 23 

April, we've added two new key members to the Mt. Airy 24 

team.  There's Jim McCarthy, he's our casino financial 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

46  46 

consultant.  Secondly is Jules Sieburgh, who's our 1 

information technology consultant. 2 

  Preliminary internal controls have been 3 

developed and submitted.  We are constructing the 4 

casino to make sure that those internal controls work 5 

efficiently with surveillance, cage security, 6 

satellite cages, the armor car bay, and the slot 7 

central computer system.  And we look forward to 8 

working with Maureen Williamson and the rest of your 9 

staff to assure compliance. 10 

  As the staffing, Mary Burrus, Lisa 11 

DeNaples and Carol Cintron (phonetic) have worked with 12 

CareerLink and employment advocates in developing 13 

staffing plans that will address the initial opening. 14 

In Phase I we expect to employ nearly 1,000 FTEs.  A 15 

key factor in the success of the casino are the 16 

employees.  Everyone says it, but our team has 17 

actually experienced the good and bad.   18 

  I always saw the biggest part of my job 19 

as being responsible for treating my associates the 20 

way I want them to treat our guests, with respect and 21 

courtesy.  This is a formula for success, and that's 22 

what our guests at Mt. Airy can expect.   23 

  As to problem gambling, as you can see 24 

from our program that we submitted, we will be 25 
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training personnel to identify problem gamblers and 1 

how to address the issue when they are identified.  2 

Most recently, Carol Cintron attended the Las Vegas 3 

seminar on gambling addiction.  We'll report to the 4 

Gaming Board on any self-excluded person who attempts 5 

to re-enter the casino.  We plan to implement the 6 

American Gaming Association guidelines at Mt. Airy.   7 

  We look forward to working with your 8 

newly developed department on that issue.  Vic and I 9 

know that it's ultimately our responsibility to assure 10 

that our programs actually work. 11 

  We are confident that the Mt. Airy Casino 12 

& Resort will be profitable, a very successful 13 

facility.  Indeed, the five-year estimates released by 14 

the Gaming Board support this conclusion.  It is clear 15 

from the numbers in Mt. Airy scenario B.  Scenario A 16 

is a phase development that begins with 1,500 slot 17 

machines and a temporary facility.  The Board's 18 

projected a revenue show that scenario B will produce 19 

$1,093,000,000 over five years.  This number is $322 20 

million more than scenario A.  This translates into 21 

$161 million more in tax revenue payable to the 22 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 23 

  What's more, Mt. Airy's own financial 24 

projections, while conservative, indicate that the win 25 
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per machine is significantly higher than the state's 1 

projections.  And if you compare this to the initial 2 

results of Pocono Downs, or even more startling, when 3 

you see the $335 per machine average win in the 4 

Connecticut casinos, there's every reason to believe 5 

and anticipate great success from Mt. Airy. 6 

  In short, we are poised to open and 7 

operate a world class permanent hotel and casino in 8 

the fall of 2007.  With your permission, this will be 9 

the first Category 2 casino and facility to open up in 10 

the Commonwealth.   11 

  Ladies and gentlemen, this is going to be 12 

a great place.  We want to build a resort that is 13 

profitable and will be a credit to the Commonwealth, 14 

and most importantly, a place that helps drive the 15 

economy of an entire Pocono region.  I thank you for 16 

your time and consideration. 17 

  MR. DENAPLES: 18 

  Thank you, Paul. 19 

  MR. HENDERSON: 20 

  Thanks. 21 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 22 

  I'm sorry.  I apologize.  Excuse me.  I'm 23 

sorry.  24 

  MR. DENAPLES: 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

49  49 

  Continue on? 1 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 2 

  No, keep going. 3 

  MR. DENAPLES: 4 

  My daughter, Lisa, was happily practicing 5 

dentistry and attending law school when I asked her to 6 

return, help bring our community into this project.  7 

She has run several businesses and inherited the drive 8 

to get things done.  She was in California --- the 9 

only way I could get her home, find her a project.   10 

  MS. DENAPLES: 11 

  Thanks, Dad.  Good afternoon, Mr. 12 

Chairman and Board members.  My name is Lisa DeNaples, 13 

and I am the daughter of Louis DeNaples, and I'm happy 14 

to have this opportunity to speak before you today.  15 

As my father stated, I am a dentist by profession and 16 

was attending Loyola Law School in Los Angeles when my 17 

father asked me to join him in this new business.   18 

  As I very well know, my father's a very 19 

persuasive man and he assured me that Mt. Airy would 20 

be a great project, not only as a wonderful business, 21 

but also as a venture that would be advantageous for 22 

the community.   23 

  Diversity has always been a large part of 24 

all of the DeNaples industries.  Several of which I 25 
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have operated.  Understanding this, and embracing the 1 

significance of diversity, I have been handed the lead 2 

of the Mt. Airy diversity program, which we plan to be 3 

the cornerstone of which makes the Mt. Airy project a 4 

majestic business venture in an extraordinary 5 

opportunity for the community.   6 

  As in all of our businesses, we have 7 

followed a very simple process, which includes having 8 

a plan, finding the best people and executing the 9 

plan.  10 

  Our diversity plan's primary focus is to 11 

promote non-discrimination and respect for diversity 12 

to promote a diverse workforce and to provide equal 13 

employment opportunities in our business practices.   14 

  To strategically put our diversity 15 

process into place, I have assembled a team of people 16 

who bring enthusiasm, leadership, passion and 17 

competence to the project.  I have chosen Carol 18 

Cintron to lead the community outreach as well as the 19 

Diversity Supplier Program.   20 

  She has over 25 years in strategic 21 

planning and organizational design, as well as a 22 

Bachelor of Science and a Master of Science degrees in 23 

business management and planning.  Carol's well versed 24 

in the community in which we are located and sits on 25 
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several committees and boards in Monroe and 1 

neighboring counties.   2 

  I'm also very excited and proud to have 3 

brought on board Beryl Tweedle and Berniena Fiore, 4 

owners of Casino Training Enterprises, a certified 5 

NBE, who have between them over 50 years experience in 6 

casino training.  As one of three gaming schools in 7 

Atlantic City, they have provided highly trained 8 

personnel to all of the Atlantic City casinos.  Their 9 

rich experience in working with a diverse cultural mix 10 

in the gaming industry is an added value to Mt. Airy. 11 

  Our diversity team is fully engaged and 12 

focused.  We are eager to continue to meet with 13 

various organizations following up and taking action, 14 

such as --- our team was asked to speak at the Chamber 15 

of Commerce Women's and Business forum as well as 16 

their annual HR conference regarding career, vendor 17 

opportunities and best practices.  As a result, we 18 

received dozens of phones calls and e-mails each week 19 

regarding business opportunities at Mt. Airy for women 20 

entrepreneurs as well as from businesses regarding our 21 

business practices. 22 

  In October, our team developed our team 23 

developed and presented two forums.  One on career and 24 

the other one on vendor supplier diversity 25 
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opportunities.  Each forum had over 160 people in 1 

attendance.  As a result, we continued to collect a 2 

minimum of ten resumes a week via e-mail or regular 3 

mail in addition to approximately 8 to 12 vendors a 4 

week new sign-ups. 5 

  Our next forum will be in February where 6 

we will invite other Chamber of Commerce members to 7 

learn about our program.  We have scheduled a job fair 8 

for next spring.  We knew that it was imperative to 9 

immediately get the word out about the many 10 

opportunities for employment that Mt. Airy will bring 11 

to the area.  It was the success of our career forum 12 

that initiated the dialogue necessary to begin our 13 

hiring process. 14 

  To assist those who are 15 

unemployed/underemployed or seeking job changes, we 16 

have already formed a strategic alliance with the 17 

Monroe County branch of CareerLink to provide various 18 

training programs.  In addition, the Monroe County 19 

Technical Institute is working with us in developing 20 

an adult program for the career changing older adult. 21 

We are also on the advisory committee of the Lodging 22 

Success Program.   23 

  Our team is an active member of the 24 

tourism and hospitality industry partnerships in the 25 
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northeast Pennsylvania alliance on the development of 1 

workforce training and grants requirements at both the 2 

local and state level.   3 

  We are working closely with Northampton 4 

Community College, where we have a memorandum of 5 

understanding that has led to several meetings 6 

regarding the development of college level training in 7 

conjunction with East Stroudsburg and Penn State 8 

Universities.  We have been working with non-profits 9 

on the possibility of employing those who are 10 

disabled, not employed and have the ability to work in 11 

a meaningful position. 12 

  According to the census facts as of 2005, 13 

our region has a minority population of approximately 14 

10.99 percent.  Right along with the Commonwealth of 15 

Pennsylvania and our general contractor.  Our general 16 

contractor LP Ciminelli was selected for their 17 

phenomenal work on casinos and other grand structures 18 

in addition to their focus on diversity.  I'm proud to 19 

say that since August they have already awarded over 20 

ten percent of their contracts to WBEs. 21 

  Every week we have updates regarding our 22 

combined diversity programs, as well as an overall 23 

program status and actions.   24 

  Mt. Airy has developed and maintains an 25 
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extensive vendor database.  This database includes 1 

suppliers that have been identified through our 2 

Supplier Diversity Program as minority-owned,  3 

woman-owned, as well as disadvantaged business 4 

enterprises.  This system is not only a database, it 5 

is a business process tool that enhances our ability 6 

to diligently track, report and analyze and assess our 7 

Supplier Diversity Program.   8 

  To assist us with this, we have made 9 

application to join as a corporate sponsor, the 10 

minority supplier council of Pennsylvania, New Jersey, 11 

and Delaware.  This organization matches buyers with 12 

qualified minority suppliers.  This gives us the 13 

opportunity to broaden our focus on our diverse 14 

supplier base.  15 

  We have also addressed housing and 16 

transportation issues that are critical to our 17 

employees and ultimately our businesses.  Knowing 18 

this, we have focused on the following.  Our 19 

involvement with Pocono Healthy Community Alliances 20 

had led us to developing workforce housing.  To date, 21 

we have met with a development team that is a state 22 

certified WBE that specializes in workforce housing. 23 

We have marked off some land opportunities shown to 24 

them and are in the process of discussing the type of 25 
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housings to put on the land. 1 

  We are also working with Monroe County 2 

Transit Authority regarding the development of routes 3 

to Mt. Airy through the Workers' Express and Ways to 4 

Work Program.  These programs assist people who would 5 

not otherwise have transportation to work. 6 

  Finally, I would like to address the Mt. 7 

Airy foundation.  Each new community that has welcomed 8 

the business interests of my father has found itself 9 

the beneficiary of his commitment to improving the 10 

human condition, one charitable act at a time.   11 

  The Pocono Mountains will receive the 12 

same type of benefit from the Mt. Airy Foundation.  As 13 

the company's non-profit component, the foundation is 14 

designed to oversee charitable giving to the 15 

communities in which Mt. Airy's employees live and 16 

work.  The goals are to invest in the people of our 17 

region, to improve the quality of life and to create 18 

greater personal and economic opportunities.   19 

  The foundation board will be comprised of 20 

employees and managers at Mt. Airy as well as a cross 21 

section of community leaders.  This diverse 22 

composition ensures that the foundation gifts and 23 

investments are responsive to the needs of our 24 

community.   25 
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  The four main area of this foundation are 1 

focused upon childhood development, community 2 

development, diversity and education.  Mt. Airy, LLC, 3 

Number One will contribute to the Mt. Airy Foundation 4 

an amount equal to five percent of annual pre-tax 5 

income, not to exceed $1.5 million a year. 6 

  Our outreach diversity and foundation 7 

programs will continue to expand as they’re woven into 8 

the very fabric of the Mt. Airy enterprise.  We 9 

sincerely look forward to that opportunity.  Thank 10 

you. 11 

  MR. DENAPLES: 12 

  Thank you, Lisa.  Our financial 13 

projections were done by GVA.  Steve Sherf is here 14 

today to briefly address those results.  Steve? 15 

  MR. SHERF: 16 

  Thank you, and good afternoon.  My name 17 

is Steve Sherf.  I'm the executive vice president of 18 

GVA Marquette Advisors, which is a real estate 19 

consulting and evaluation firm that specializes in the 20 

gaming and hospitality industry.  I've been a gaming 21 

consultant for more than 20 years and worked on over 22 

100 casino projects throughout the country in both the 23 

merging markets, such as Pennsylvania and more mature 24 

markets, such as Las Vegas and Atlantic City. 25 
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  GVA Marquette Advisors was engaged to 1 

study the gaming market available to the Mt. Airy 2 

Casino in order to arrive at projections of the likely 3 

revenues it'll achieve.  In our study, we first 4 

quantified the gaming potential that exists in the 5 

market, and then we estimated the share of this market 6 

that we believe the Mt. Airy Casino can capture.   7 

  In both of these tasks we looked at the 8 

following demand factors.  We looked at the population 9 

from the perspective of both density and the location 10 

of the adult population.  We looked at income, 11 

disposable income.  We looked at the quantity of 12 

casinos that exist in the region.  We looked at the 13 

proximity and the convenience of the casinos, as that 14 

has a direct correlation with the frequency of 15 

visitation.  We looked at the qualities and the 16 

amenities offered so that we new how to recommend what 17 

facilities were appropriate for Mt. Airy, and we 18 

looked at the entertainment alternatives from the 19 

perspective that if there isn't a lot available in a 20 

particularly rural market, then gaming is typically 21 

more popular. 22 

  To quantify these factors, then, we 23 

performed a gravity analysis for each county within 24 

the defined market area, and that's how we arrived at 25 
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our market potential.  And as the penetration that we 1 

expect the Mt. Airy casino to achieve.   2 

  The relevant market area was identified 3 

by evaluating the location of other casinos in the 4 

region.  We found that a two-hour drive time separated 5 

the areas casinos.  As you can see on the map, the 6 

two-hour drive time around the Mt. Airy just 7 

intersects to the north --- to the top of the slide, 8 

the Oneida Casinos market area.  To the east or to the 9 

right on the slide, it intersects the Connecticut 10 

Native American Casinos market area, and to the south 11 

of the bottom of the screen, it begins to intersect 12 

the two hours from the Atlantic City market area.  So 13 

we focused on a two-hour competitive market.   14 

  We considered the primary competition for 15 

the Mt. Airy Casino to be a casino at Wilkes-Barre, 16 

the proposed casino in the Lehigh Valley, and the 17 

secondary competition is considered to be the proposed 18 

Penn National Casino at Grantville.  The Monticello 19 

Casino and the Catskills, and the two casinos in New 20 

York at Aqueduct and Yonkers. 21 

  Our primary market, which is designated 22 

by the purple there, consists of the eight counties 23 

that lie within one hour of the Mt. Airy site.  These 24 

counties contain 1.1 million adults, and we project 25 
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that the casino is going to be able to capture about 1 

$155 million in gaming revenue from the primary market 2 

area. 3 

  The secondary market area has a much 4 

lower penetration that consists of the surrounding 37 5 

counties.  These counties contain 14.4 million adults, 6 

and we expect to capture about $140 million from these 7 

more distant counties.  We believe that the Poconos is 8 

a tourist market, and therefore will be less dependant 9 

on local casino demand, and capable of drawing 10 

visitors from greater distances.   11 

  Notice that our secondary market on that 12 

map includes the greater New York City area.  We 13 

believe very strongly that the quality of the facility 14 

planned at Mt. Airy and the supporting amenities in 15 

the area will be able to draw a demand from the New 16 

York City market.  In fact, we estimate that about $40 17 

million of gaming revenue will be captured from these 18 

counties. 19 

  This accounts for the difference between 20 

our projected revenue and the lower revenues that were 21 

projected in the Commission's independent market 22 

study.  The New York City area was left out of that 23 

study, which we believe is inaccurate, as the Mt. Airy 24 

Casino will draw from this area, particularly with its 25 
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planned busing program.   1 

  We worked closely with the management 2 

team in determining appropriate size and quality of 3 

amenities to include it in this casino and resort.  4 

Our study, therefore, projects gaming revenue of about 5 

$314 million in the third year of operation.  As 6 

mentioned previously $155 million will come from the 7 

primary market, $140 million will come from the 8 

secondary market, and we believe the hotel will add an 9 

increment of about another $19 million, which will be 10 

people coming to the resort from outside of the market 11 

area. 12 

  We expect the casino will attract about 13 

5.2 million visitors on an annual basis and will 14 

generate in the vicinity of $154 million in taxes and 15 

fees for the Commonwealth.  We're comfortable with 16 

these numbers.  We believe them to be well supported. 17 

As part of our testing of the economic feasibility of 18 

this project, we showed that --- we did a sensitivity 19 

analysis and we varied revenues and expenses, interest 20 

rates and various other sensitive assumptions. 21 

  We did do a sensitivity analysis that 22 

showed that even if the project was to incur a  23 

20-percent decline in revenues, it still would be able 24 

to comfortably meet its debt service. 25 
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  We were also asked to evaluate and 1 

critique the --- the critique of the Mt. Airy project 2 

that was prepared by Spectrum Gaming, at the direction 3 

of the Pocono Manor team.  We were not able to 4 

evaluate the revenue projections, as their methodology 5 

was not provided.  We believe the projections that 6 

they presented in that critique incorrectly ignored 7 

the ramp up of revenues that typically occurs at new 8 

casinos in the emerging market.  9 

  Such a revenue increase results from the 10 

increased awareness in the market of a new facility 11 

and a growing database of players in which the new 12 

casino can target with marketing promotions.  The 13 

study's assumptions as to Mt. Airy's space and 14 

facilities were incorrect.  And as you've heard today, 15 

the Mt. Airy Casino floor has been laid out by 16 

professionals and meet all the requirements 17 

established by the Commission.   18 

  There is space for unlimited parking on 19 

the site, and over 2,200 spaces are planned for Phase 20 

I.  Parking will not be a problem for the casino.  21 

Thank you for your time. 22 

  MR. DENAPLES: 23 

  Thank you, Steve.   24 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

62  62 

  Is there anyone else, or should we  1 

take --- it's okay.  Maybe we should take a break. 2 

  MR. DENAPLES: 3 

  I was concluded. 4 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 5 

  Concluding, please. 6 

  MR. DENAPLES: 7 

  I was told to be done in an hour and a 8 

half. 9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 10 

  Well, you did it.  It's a miracle.  11 

You're the only. 12 

  MR. DENAPLES: 13 

  In conclusion, as you have seen today, 14 

our project is real and tangible.  We will be open in 15 

the fall of 2007.  We have the team in place to open 16 

this facility, and we'll make it profitable since the 17 

first day. 18 

  The site is unparallel, is more than 19 

sufficient to develop our $1.2 billion master plan 20 

build out and still preserve the vast Greenland areas. 21 

I already have in hand all environmental water, sewage 22 

and permits to operate our first phase of the 3,000 23 

slot machines. 24 

  Finally, we have a complete understanding 25 
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and appreciation of what it takes to truly be 1 

successful in the newly industry.  We will ensure all 2 

members of our diverse community and the workforce are 3 

provided opportunities to share in our success.  I 4 

trust that you will grant our request to make Mt. Airy 5 

Resort a casino in reality. 6 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 7 

  Thank you.  Go ahead. 8 

 MR. DENAPLES: 9 

  I'd like to thank the Board, and thank 10 

your staff and thank all of our staff over here for 11 

all the time and efforts through the years to get to 12 

this point today.  We appreciate it very much.  And 13 

your staff has been very, very cooperative.  I was --- 14 

my telephones, when they're ringing, midnight, and  15 

e-mails coming in one, two o'clock in the morning, and 16 

they were sending them to our people to try to get to 17 

this point today.  Thank you very much.   18 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 19 

  Thank you.  We're going to take a  20 

five-minute break and come back with questions. 21 

SHORT BREAK TAKEN 22 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 23 

  We're going to go right to questions, if 24 

you don't mind about the presentation. 25 
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  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 1 

  If I could, Mr. Chairman, one second.  I 2 

just want to clarify one thing on the record.  Mr. 3 

Hemmler, I think, misspoke when he said the --- it's 4 

$102 million would phase --- would fully fund all of 5 

Phase II.  The $102 million funds Phase 2-A, what has 6 

been sent to the taskforce as 2-A, which is expand the 7 

casino to 5,000 slots, added parking and additional 8 

food and beverage. 9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 10 

  Maybe I can start with that question 11 

then.  Could you go over the phases and the amounts 12 

spent on each phase and what's in it just really 13 

quickly? 14 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 15 

  Yes.  The first phase is $400 million.  16 

That's what's going to be --- and that's going to 17 

include 400 hotel rooms, 70,000 square foot casino, 18 

four --- if you can put the chart up, Pete.  Four 19 

restaurants, the parking that we spoke of and the 20 

retail bridge across Woodland Road. 21 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 22 

  2,500 --- did you say slots, 2,500? 23 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 24 

  It would be 2,500 slots, yes. 25 
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  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 1 

  Okay.  And then what is Phase II? 2 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 3 

  Phase II is then --- if we can get the 4 

chart up.   5 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 6 

  It's across the street? 7 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 8 

  Phase II expands the casino to allow for 9 

5,000 slot machines.  It allows --- 2-A does.  We add 10 

additional parking and some more food and beverage, 11 

expanded food and beverage. 12 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 13 

  Is that at the same site, or is that 14 

across the street? 15 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 16 

  Some of it --- it's all on the same site. 17 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 18 

  Okay. 19 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 20 

  And then Phase II full build-out starts 21 

expanding across the site for --- as you saw in the 22 

full build-out.  And Dave really can talk to that 23 

better than I can. 24 

  MR. HEMMLER: 25 
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  I think Phase I is 3,000 slot machines. 1 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 2 

  Oh, I'm sorry.  It starts at 2,500 and it 3 

goes to 3,000. 4 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 5 

  3,000, okay. 6 

  MR. DENAPLES: 7 

  Within the year. 8 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 9 

  All right.  We understood that.  When is 10 

the village piece --- I hate to use --- I don't want 11 

to characterize it as such, but when does that --- is 12 

that 2-B or 3, or what are we talking here? 13 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 14 

  I'm going to ask Al to address that. 15 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 16 

  Because that sort of caught us by 17 

surprise a little bit, as you may imagine. 18 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 19 

  What we're looking at is laying out the 20 

land with the land ---. 21 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 22 

  You better hop on that so people can hear 23 

you.  Okay.  Thank you. 24 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 25 
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  What we've done since April is to 1 

evaluate the land.  Again, we have very extensive 2 

commitment inside Paradise Township to commit well 3 

over half of our property into permanent greenways.  4 

So we've been evaluating the balance of the property, 5 

that is that it's environmentally sensitive.  And 6 

trying to interweave in there a bunch of communities.  7 

  I would say that the master plan we have 8 

envisioned, I would suspect that would probably 9 

commence somewhere --- considering all of the 10 

environmental and regulatory issues that we would 11 

face, probably sometime in 2010 to 2012. 12 

  MR. RIVERS: 13 

  Excuse me.  Mr. Chairman, while we have 14 

the diagram on the screen, could you take us through 15 

it by phases so that we have an idea of where we are 16 

and when, as well as the associated costs? 17 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 18 

  Right. 19 

  MR. HEMMLER: 20 

  What you see on the screen right now is 21 

what will be the finished for the opening in --- at 22 

the end of this year, in 2007.  This coming year, 23 

excuse me.  That's 2,500 ---. 24 

  MR. DENAPLES: 25 
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  October 7th. 1 

  MR. HEMMLER: 2 

  October. 3 

  MR. DENAPLES: 4 

  Not the end. 5 

  MR. HEMMLER: 6 

  October of 2007.  Casino space, as you 7 

saw in the blown up casino layout for 2,500 slot 8 

machines, all the necessary support space, the four 9 

restaurants, the cocktail lounge, the spa, at this 10 

particular case, 196 hotel rooms, the indoor pool.  11 

There is parking for approximately 380 spaces under 12 

the casino, and the additional parking, as you can 13 

see, adjacent to the casino, and across Woodland Road. 14 

  MR. ANGELI: 15 

  How many spaces is that? 16 

  MR. HEMMLER: 17 

  The total is 1,630, I believe, Mr. 18 

Angeli. 19 

  MR. ANGELI: 20 

  Okay.  So as in Phase I? 21 

  MR. HEMMLER: 22 

  Well, it is --- as we've been calling it 23 

by the end of 2007, okay.   24 

  MR. ANGELI: 25 
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  Okay. 1 

  MR. HEMMLER: 2 

  We're also calling Phase I, and this may 3 

be a little bit confusing, but we're also calling 4 

Phase I, what you're going to see next on the slide, 5 

which is to be completed in --- in the fall of 2008, 6 

or before the end of our first year of operation.  7 

Okay.  And that is in the upper corner of the slide, 8 

the parking garage which is 1,094 spaces across 9 

Woodland Road.  A 31,000 square foot shopping bridge 10 

to connect the new parking garage to the casino 11 

expansion, as you can see, and the casino expansion is 12 

for an additional 500 slots. 13 

  So the point to consider is by the end of 14 

our first year of operation, we will be operational 15 

with 3,000 --- space for 3,000 --- and 3,000 slot 16 

machines, 2,232 parking spaces and 31 additional 17 

square feet, or approximately about 32,000 --- 32,000, 18 

33,000 square feet of shopping.  Additionally ---. 19 

  MR. MCCABE: 20 

  Is that $400 million for that? 21 

  MR. HEMMLER: 22 

  Yes. 23 

  MR. DENAPLES: 24 

  Yes. 25 
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  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 1 

  Fully committed phase one is $400 2 

million? 3 

  MR. HEMMLER: 4 

  That's correct. 5 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 6 

  So that's 200 rooms or 400 rooms? 7 

  MR. HEMMLER: 8 

  I was just about to add the final feature 9 

to this expansion, which is an expanded spa and 10 

outside pool, as well as an additional 204 hotel 11 

rooms, bringing the total complement of rooms to 400 12 

rooms.  So again, by review --- by the end of our 13 

first year of operation, we will have fully 14 

operational 3,000 slot machines, 2,232 parking spaces 15 

and 400 rooms.   16 

  MR. RIVERS: 17 

  That's what I thought. 18 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 19 

  Yes. 20 

  MR. HEMMLER: 21 

  Any other questions on that? 22 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 23 

  No. 24 

  MR. HEMMLER: 25 
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  Thank you very much. 1 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 2 

  Thank you.  We may have some more in a 3 

minute, but --- and that's the commitment to that.  4 

And what are you calling Phase II then, Mr. DeNaples 5 

or Mr. Donnelly? 6 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 7 

  Phase 2-A now, if you can show that,  8 

Is --- its time table for construction start is March 9 

of 2008, and completion for the casino portion of 2-A 10 

is September 2010.  That will have another 2,000 11 

slots, 1,170 additional food and beverage seats and 12 

1,200 additional parking spaces.  That is funded  13 

now --- and the funding is available for that, it's 14 

about $102 million. 15 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 16 

  That's $102 million, and that's committed 17 

financing? 18 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 19 

  That's committed financing.  20 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 21 

  Not highly confident --- committed 22 

funding? 23 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 24 

  No, it's committed through a number of 25 
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credit facilities that Mr. DeNaples himself is 1 

involved in. 2 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 3 

  Okay. 4 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 5 

  But I want to emphasize that that --- the 6 

construction of that two-way is going to be dependant 7 

on market forces, but we have the funds available for 8 

that. 9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 10 

  Okay. 11 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 12 

  And then 2-B, which is not committed 13 

money and so on is for March of 2009, commencing 14 

construction.  In September 2010, completing, and that 15 

would be additional 3,400 parking spaces, an 16 

additional 41,500 retail, more spa areas, 7,800 and a 17 

conference and banquet facility of 174,000 square 18 

feet. 19 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 20 

  So the conference center comes in this 21 

phase; correct? 22 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 23 

  In phase 2-B, yes, sir. 24 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 25 
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  Is there a conference center before that 1 

of any --- just so we understand it? 2 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 3 

  I'm not sure what's in there is the 4 

conference ---.   5 

  MR. HEMMLER: 6 

  There's a small executive conference area 7 

or facility complete with its own kitchen as part of 8 

the hotel that would seat approximately 300 people, it 9 

can be subdivided into three separate spaces.   10 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 11 

  That's this one? 12 

  MR. HEMMLER: 13 

  That is actually to be completed by the 14 

end of 2007. 15 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 16 

  Okay.  That's the first one? 17 

  MR. HEMMLER: 18 

  That's correct. 19 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 20 

  Okay.  You mean October, right?  Only 21 

kidding. 22 

  MR. HEMMLER: 23 

  Thank you. 24 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 25 
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  And then, what is the cost of 2-B; do we 1 

know?  Mr. Donnelly, what's the cost of ---? 2 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 3 

  The cost of 2-B is $159 million. 4 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 5 

  Okay.  So that $159.  Okay.  We're just 6 

trying to ---.  Okay. 7 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 8 

  And Mike was telling me I gave the wrong 9 

date.  What date did you give?  Okay.  There's a typo 10 

in there.  Phase 2-B completion is September 2012.  11 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 12 

  You did say that before, I think.  You 13 

did say that before. 14 

  MR. COY: 15 

  Mr. DeNaples, you have attorneys to watch 16 

other attorneys. 17 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 18 

  That's how it should be. 19 

  MR. DENAPLES: 20 

  I got to watch the both of them. 21 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 22 

  And what are you calling the village 23 

portion of this, or was that something else? 24 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 25 
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  That's the master plan that Al --- that's 1 

the master plan for the whole 890 acres.  And Al, 2 

you've addressed some timing on that. 3 

  MR. DENAPLES: 4 

  He did that. 5 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 6 

  Okay.  Yeah, I think you did. 7 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 8 

  Yes. 9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 10 

  Do you have a timetable on that, and 11 

that's part of the --- is the master plan part of the 12 

total $850, or am I not doing my math right? 13 

  MR. DENAPLES: 14 

  The 890 acres less the 500. 15 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 16 

  Where did I get the number $850?  Was I 17 

dreaming? 18 

  MR. ANGELI: 19 

  Are you talking about dollars? 20 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 21 

  Yes. 22 

  MR. DENAPLES: 23 

  He's talking about dollars. 24 

  MR. ANGELI: 25 
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  Total dollars after --- 1 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 2 

  I thought somebody said ---. 3 

  MR. ANGELI: 4 

  --- the villages are completed. 5 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 6 

  Okay.  What we testified to is that our 7 

projection, based on our concept at this time at the 8 

full build-out of the master plan, I believe the 9 

number was $850 million total. 10 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 11 

  For the total project, everything, from 12 

all the phases through the master plan? 13 

   MR. MAGNOTTA: 14 

  The master ---. 15 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 16 

  I'm getting some --- I'm getting a 17 

quizzical look.  Am I doing this wrong? 18 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 19 

  No, to me that's related to the master 20 

plan. 21 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 22 

  Okay.  But is that $850 --- $850 million 23 

separate from everything else you're spending?   24 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 25 
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  Yes. 1 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 2 

  I mean, --- let me ask the question 3 

simpler.  If you take Phase I, right, and then what 4 

you're calling Phase II, right, A and 2-B, it comes up 5 

to $659 million.  Even I can do that math without a 6 

calculator.  What's the $850 number mean? 7 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 8 

  The $850 number would be based --- the 9 

full build-out, the economic cost of the full  10 

build-out master plan, which is not included in that 11 

number.  So the total investment, I believe, reported 12 

to be about $1.2 to $1.3 billion.   13 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 14 

  So the master plan is an additional $850? 15 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 16 

  Yes. 17 

  MR. DENAPLES: 18 

  Yes. 19 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 20 

  Oh, I misunderstood.  That's what I  21 

was ---. 22 

  MR. DENAPLES: 23 

  $1.2 is the total.   24 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 25 
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  Thank you for correcting that, because a 1 

lot of us had that wrong.   2 

  MS. COLINS: 3 

  But the committed financing is just 4 

through two-way, and that would be for $502 million; 5 

right? 6 

  MR. DENAPLES: 7 

  That's the financing, yes. 8 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 9 

  That's correct. 10 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 11 

  Okay.  We understand.  Any other 12 

questions on the spend or the phases?  Go ahead, Ken. 13 

  MR. MCCABE: 14 

  I'm getting $100 million that is 15 

committed.  Do we have those commitment letters? 16 

  MR. DENAPLES: 17 

  Yes, you do. 18 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 19 

  We do. 20 

  MR. MCCABE: 21 

  Okay.  Because I know the $400 we do, for 22 

JPMorgan. 23 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 24 

  Okay.  What other questions? 25 
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  MR. ANGELI: 1 

  Just a couple questions.  I may have 2 

missed it.  The sewer plant, your water treatment 3 

plan.  How are you servicing this area with the water 4 

treatment plant? 5 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 6 

  We have an existing operational plant, 7 

wastewater treatment plant that has a permanent 8 

capacity of 220,000 gallons per day.  Our projections 9 

are within conjunction with our consultant and in 10 

discussions with the Department is that our initial 11 

project, and I'll refer back to this as to the fall of 12 

2007 project, or October of 2007 project, i.e., 200 13 

rooms, 2,500 slots, and we have to serve the Ville of 14 

our Lady, which was the prior agreement, and, of 15 

course, the pro shop.  But the total projected 16 

wastewater from all those facilities amounts to, I 17 

believe it's 165,000 gallons a day. 18 

  The balance would be used to add on 19 

what's going to be done by the 2008, which is the kick 20 

out for the additional 500 slot machines, the retail 21 

bridge and the parking garage. 22 

  We have sufficient capacity, permanent 23 

capacity in-hand to get to those 3,000 slot machines, 24 

400 rooms. 25 
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  MR. ANGELI: 1 

  And to do the rest of your project, will 2 

you expand that plant there, and do you have any plans 3 

on providing that treatment to those communities that 4 

you're going to develop around you? 5 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 6 

  The issue of expansion of a permanent 7 

plant, again, in the Poconos on a high quality 8 

watershed, which all streams are, in this particular 9 

region, it's a very extensive process.  We have 10 

commission to study, and have met with the Department 11 

on several occasions to discuss the opportunities 12 

there. 13 

  I can tell you that it is a --- there's a 14 

significant effort and some time involved in getting 15 

an expansion of a point source treatment plant on a 16 

high quality watershed in Pennsylvania.  What you have 17 

to do is do an analysis to ensure --- they basically 18 

start it at zero discharge, how can you use it up?  19 

Obviously, we're going to use it up through land 20 

application on the golf course, re-use in the 21 

building, various things like that. 22 

  That has all got to be in place before we 23 

can get much beyond --- and again, the question's 24 

relative to the ancillary development.  This is all 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

81  81 

going to be part and parcel the auxiliary development. 1 

We had discussions with several adjacent landowners as 2 

to their potential to participate when we extend 3 

applications to extend the treatment plant, but we 4 

have no commitments in place to date. 5 

  MR. ANGELI: 6 

  Okay.  Thank you.  The road ends about 7 

four and a half miles from the main --- from 611? 8 

  MR. DENAPLES: 9 

  Two. 10 

  MR. ANGELI: 11 

  It's two miles in? 12 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 13 

  No, it's about four miles from the 14 

interchange with 940 and 380. 15 

  MR. ANGELI: 16 

  From 611 in? 17 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 18 

  Oh, from 611 to ---. 19 

  MR. DENAPLES: 20 

  Two miles. 21 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 22 

  Well, 611 to --- 611 to the entrance is 23 

about a mile.  The total --- we are re-conditioning 24 

the total of two miles of Woodland. 25 
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  MR. ANGELI: 1 

  So are you widening that? 2 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 3 

  Yes. 4 

  MR. ANGELI: 5 

  Okay.  And is that a township road, or is 6 

that a ---? 7 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 8 

  It was a state road, but in our --- as 9 

through a developer's agreement we have with the 10 

township, it has been taken back under the PennDOT 11 

Turnback Program, and it is a township road.  It has 12 

been designed in accordance and acceptable to all the 13 

consultants of the township.  The township’s going to 14 

be involved in the inspection, but it will be widened 15 

to three lanes and curved, basically. 16 

  MR. ANGELI: 17 

  Now, there was some question about the 18 

school district building a new school there.  Have you 19 

had discussions with the school district as to what's 20 

happening there? 21 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 22 

  Yes.  From day one, as Mr. DeNaples 23 

pointed out, we've made a consorted effort to get 24 

input from the locals and, of course, the school 25 
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district was very important in a lot of our 1 

discussions and a lot of our input for a couple of 2 

reasons.  3 

  One, the school district is growing 4 

aggressively, and asked that as we considered the 5 

development of the master plan that we try to focus a 6 

little bit more on first buyers and senior buyers 7 

because of the expansion of their population, and it's 8 

one of the things that we took into account when we 9 

were envisioning and coming up with a master plan. 10 

  The second thing we did is we worked 11 

closely with them on the traffic.  We actually sent 12 

and had counts out in conjunction with their people to 13 

count the traffic in and out at peak times in the 14 

development of our improvements, basically widening 15 

out the turning lanes.   16 

  Also, we are working with the district 17 

and have agreed with them to, A, put a warning 18 

flashing sign up on Woodland Road, which we will also 19 

staff.  No --- well, we're not going to staff, I 20 

shouldn't say that.  They are going to staff with a 21 

crossing guard at all periods of time, high morning 22 

time, high afternoon time, high special events.  23 

They're going to staff with their personnel, and we 24 

will reimburse them to make sure that all traffic is 25 
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properly coordinated on Woodland Road and so it 1 

doesn't interfere with the school functions. 2 

  MR. ANGELI: 3 

  Thank you.  From the construction 4 

standpoint, and as I've asked this question before 5 

about working with local unions to see if they have 6 

the opportunity to participate in the construction, 7 

have you reached out to anyone? 8 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 9 

  Yes.  We have had numerous discussions 10 

with a lot of the unions.  I would say of the $34 11 

million that has been committed to date, I believe $26 12 

million is with union --- companies that have union 13 

agreements, yes. 14 

  MR. ANGELI: 15 

  Thank you. 16 

  MR. RIVERS: 17 

  Mr. Chairman? 18 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 19 

  Please. 20 

  MR. RIVERS: 21 

  My question evolves around employment for 22 

the locals.  Either I missed it, or you know, somehow 23 

didn't catch it.  What are we talking about as it 24 

relates to job opportunities for local and/or people 25 
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associated on a periphery with your casino? 1 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 2 

  I assume you're talking about operations. 3 

  MR. RIVERS: 4 

  All of the above.  Direct and indirect 5 

employment. 6 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 7 

  Well, I can speak for the construction 8 

aspect.  And I'll Lisa to talk about the operational 9 

aspect.  But we have a very --- our contractor, LP 10 

Ciminelli, has really done an outreach program that  11 

--- the issue that becomes for us that because of the 12 

time frame we're under and the time schedule we're 13 

under, most of the contracts we have are very large in 14 

size and very aggressive in schedule.  And that 15 

somewhat makes it difficult --- becomes a larger 16 

contract or group of contractors required to keep on 17 

the schedule.  But we do have, as I said, so far, 18 

about ten percent ---. 19 

  MR. RIVERS: 20 

  My question doesn't revolve around the 21 

percentages.  My question evolves around the number of 22 

people that you are employing.   23 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 24 

  Right now, or ---? 25 
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  MR. RIVERS: 1 

  Yes.  Yes.  This project and the 2 

associated projects? 3 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 4 

  I don't have that answer. 5 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 6 

  Sanford, can you repeat the question?  I 7 

don't think they understand it. 8 

  MR. RIVERS: 9 

  Okay.  Let me start all over again.  In 10 

terms of local impact in employment, how many people 11 

will the casino be hiring in terms of indirect and 12 

direct? 13 

  MR. HENDERSON: 14 

  This casino will employ approximately 15 

1,000 FTEs.  Auxiliary employees in the surrounding 16 

regions in support of it, could --- will usually use 17 

twice as many.  You can see 2,000 additional jobs in 18 

the region.  That's normal.   19 

  MR. RIVERS: 20 

  That was easy.   21 

  MR. MARSHALL: 22 

  I'd like to talk about the slot revenue, 23 

the estimates.  As I understand the presentation, you 24 

believe that the --- sort of destination resort, 25 
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amenities, all those things will broaden your market 1 

and allow you --- give you access to greater number of 2 

people.  That's the basis for the difference between 3 

your estimates of annual slot revenue and the 4 

taskforce estimates? 5 

  MR. SHERF:  6 

  I think almost the entire difference 7 

comes from the fact that we included the edge of New 8 

Jersey and the New York Counties, King County, Queen 9 

County.  And I believe your consultants did not, if I 10 

understand.  So that's --- other than that, our market 11 

areas are almost identical. 12 

  MR. MARSHALL: 13 

  Have you considered the impact if the 14 

actual performance is closer to the taskforce 15 

estimates than to yours? 16 

  MR. SHERF: 17 

  I'm sorry? 18 

  MR. MARSHALL: 19 

  Well, if in year one with 3,000 machines, 20 

and I believe that's what your --- the commitment is 21 

to 3,000, you'll grow if the market okays that. 22 

  MR. SHERF: 23 

  Yeah, by year three.  Correct. 24 

  MR. MARSHALL: 25 
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  There's a difference of $48 million 1 

between the taskforce estimates of slot revenue in 2 

$2,005, in your estimate.  And that seems to hold 3 

pretty clear.  You bounce between --- well, at the 4 

end, but in the first four years, somewhere 24 and a 5 

half percent and 35 and a half percent difference.  6 

And all I'm trying to get, there's nothing nefarious 7 

behind it. 8 

  MR. SHERF: 9 

  Right. 10 

  MR. MARSHALL: 11 

  Have you considered what impact, if any, 12 

would the lower estimate have on the project?  Can the 13 

project still go forward? 14 

  MR. SHERF: 15 

  Oh, I see.  If we were $48 --- if the 16 

project achieved the revenue is $48 million less than 17 

what we're projecting. 18 

  MR. MARSHALL: 19 

  Right. 20 

  MR. SHERF: 21 

  Yes.  In one of our sensitivity analyses, 22 

we reduced all the casino revenues by 20 percent, so 23 

that's close to $60 million and compared that with the 24 

debt service, and we had sufficient coverage under 25 
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that scenario. 1 

  MR. MARSHALL: 2 

  So Phase I gets done up and running, and 3 

continues, no questions asked? 4 

  MR. SHERF: 5 

  Yes. 6 

  MR. MARSHALL: 7 

  Thank you. 8 

  MS. COLINS: 9 

  Mr. Chairman? 10 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 11 

  Okay.  Just before you --- that's all 12 

right.  Go ahead.  Mary and then Jeff. 13 

  MS. COLINS: 14 

  Thank you.  Mr. DeNaples, today you've 15 

presented us with plans, the scope of which are much 16 

larger than the previous submissions.  And in fact, 17 

the plans you submit today for your overall project 18 

are pretty grand and significant.  And I guess my 19 

question to you is, since now this is more of a 20 

destination larger project, what can you tell me 21 

concerning whether or not this project will have --- 22 

will or will not have an adverse impact on the 23 

existing businesses, the existing restaurants, the 24 

existing support businesses in that location? 25 
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  MR. DENAPLES: 1 

  Well, I think if you look at the plan, 2 

the original plan had the same amount of amenities in 3 

the hotel and the casino.  I think the only thing that 4 

was added to it was the build-out on it, the build-out 5 

to go up to the $1.2 billion.  But that's phase-in, 6 

and that's providing --- there's a demand for it.  But 7 

again, I stand here today and --- with my first 8 

original commitment, I will not compete with the rest 9 

of the mountain up there.  I want to complement them. 10 

  MS. COLINS: 11 

  Thank you. 12 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 13 

  Mr. Coy? 14 

  MR. COY: 15 

  Well, I asked a similar question this 16 

morning, to the previous applicant.  And it's a 17 

concern of mine, too, and I appreciate your response. 18 

But I know you know the history of the area and the 19 

political history of the area better than I do, 20 

because as I indicated this morning, there was an 21 

attempt in the 1980s by the --- in the legislature to 22 

at least introduce some form of gaming in the Poconos. 23 

And the community was pretty divided over it, and 24 

basically it didn't happen. 25 
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  The question --- and one of the concerns 1 

was what it would do to the area.  The negative impact 2 

on the economy, possibly for the other folks who were 3 

there.  So it is a concern, I think, for the Board, as 4 

we look at the project to make sure that whatever 5 

applicant would receive a license has in mind the 6 

needs of the entire area.  In other words, simply not 7 

to dominate the hotel market, the restaurant market 8 

and so on.  And I just heard you say that you're 9 

concerned about the people. 10 

  MR. DENAPLES: 11 

  We will not dominate the market, and we 12 

have no intentions of that.  We have intentions of 13 

getting the gaming casino up, and use enough amenities 14 

to keep the customer that's at the gaming casino.  15 

It's not in our best interest or the mountain's best 16 

interest to go up and dominate and compete the rest of 17 

the Pocono Mountain. 18 

  MR. COY: 19 

  And I appreciate that.  And I hope that  20 

--- if the project continues and however that happens, 21 

that you would continue in that consideration so that 22 

the whole area, small restaurants, smaller motels and 23 

hotels would be able share in that benefit.  Let me 24 

ask you a question about ---. 25 
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  MR. DENAPLES: 1 

  I pledge here to you today that it will 2 

not hurt the rest of the mountain. 3 

  MR. COY: 4 

  Thank you.  I just want --- I don't know 5 

whether I read it in our background papers or whether 6 

I heard it today.  Things are sort of running 7 

together.  But I want to be clear with regard to 8 

Paradise Township and the construction of the EMS 9 

building.  Is that something --- and that's going to 10 

be adjacent to the casino, right? 11 

  MR. DENAPLES: 12 

  Yes. 13 

  MR. COY: 14 

  Is that something that you are going to 15 

fund? 16 

  MR. DENAPLES: 17 

  We're going to fund it, yes. 18 

  MR. COY: 19 

  How about the folks that would work 20 

there, the golfers and the staff? 21 

  MR. DENAPLES: 22 

  We're going to staff, yes. 23 

  MR. COY: 24 

  And that would not be exclusive then only 25 
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to folks who may have a problem at the casino; it 1 

would be for the whole area? 2 

  MR. DENAPLES: 3 

  Right.  Paradise Township will have 4 

access to it, yes. 5 

  MR. COY: 6 

  Okay.  Good.  Maybe this goes to the 7 

gentleman that has answered the questions about the 8 

water quality and so on.  I just wanted to make sure 9 

we talk about this morning also that you are 10 

addressing --- when you said you met with the 11 

Department about high quality streams and so on, you 12 

were talking about the Department of Environmental 13 

Protection in Pennsylvania? 14 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 15 

  Yes. 16 

  MR. COY: 17 

  Are there any federal EPA standards that 18 

are involved here that you had to be concerned about? 19 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 20 

  No.  We're talking about water 21 

consumption and water disposal in the Pocono Mountain 22 

Regions.  There's two entities that you deal with.  It 23 

would be the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental 24 

Protection and of course the Delaware River Basin 25 
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Commission that makes the allocation of withdrawal. 1 

  MR. COY: 2 

  With respect to them, the Delaware River 3 

Commission, it's more concerned about how much water 4 

you take out of the streams for usage, and the DEP is 5 

how you handle wastewater. 6 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 7 

  Well, with the water withdrawal, it's a 8 

joint --- for example, the permit we have for our 9 

community water supply system, it's a joint effort 10 

between the two parties to manage the water resources. 11 

You have to get a docket, which is what they call a 12 

docket number or a permit from the River Basin 13 

Commission before DEP will issue the community water 14 

supply permit. 15 

  MR. COY: 16 

  Do you have to be in compliance or 17 

address compliance with the Nutrient Management Act, 18 

do you know? 19 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 20 

  Well, the Chesapeake Bay Initiative 21 

you're speaking of? 22 

  MR. COY: 23 

  Correct. 24 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

95  95 

  The Chesapeake Bay Initiative is a 1 

nutrient reduction removal of a program that is in the 2 

forefront of activities of the Department.  And of 3 

course, everyone in the Chesapeake Bay drainage area 4 

will receive permits, I will suspect in the next --- 5 

within the next year, that you must address and 6 

achieve attainment to very low limits for nitrate and 7 

phosphorous. 8 

  I'm not a hundred percent sure if it's 9 

mandated on the Delaware River Basin yet, which we 10 

could be in the Delaware River Basin, not the 11 

Susquehanna River Basin, but I can tell you any plant 12 

expansion that anybody's going to seek or a new point 13 

source discharge in the Delaware watershed is going to 14 

require lower limits --- much lower limits than 15 

presently exist. 16 

  MR. COY: 17 

  Yeah.  The program that you're talking 18 

about is the point source, and the Nutrient Management 19 

Act addresses more the non-point source, and it is a 20 

statewide act regardless of which watershed you're in. 21 

I just want to make sure if you had to be in 22 

compliance, that you were, or you're aware of it. 23 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 24 

  Yes, we're aware of it. 25 
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  MR. COY: 1 

  One last question I would just like to 2 

explore with you, Mr. DeNaples, for a moment.  It was 3 

sort of asked this morning, but in a different sort of 4 

way.  The Board has issued a license, a Category 1 5 

license already in the Poconos to Mohegan Sun.  Now, 6 

we have several standalone applications, and you're 7 

applying for one of them, and the group this morning 8 

applied for one.  How many can this area support?  9 

What's your feeling about that is --- can it support 10 

just the --- well, obviously, I think you think it can 11 

support two. 12 

  MR. DENAPLES: 13 

  Yeah. 14 

  MR. COY: 15 

  But what about three?  I mean, how much 16 

is --- how much can this area sustain?  What's your 17 

opinion? 18 

  MR. DENAPLES: 19 

  My opinion --- personal opinion is two 20 

definitely can sustain, and that's the reason we went 21 

out to the Poconos out there, okay, to draw from 22 

Jersey, North Jersey and New York and Philadelphia out 23 

there.  So three is a stretch. 24 

  MR. COY: 25 
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  Now, I heard you say in the beginning of 1 

your presentation that --- in fact, I think it was 2 

very, very near the beginning you said that when you 3 

decided to look at the possibility of establishing 4 

some sort of gaming facility, you went all across 5 

Pennsylvania.  I heard you say you went to Pittsburgh 6 

and Gettysburg and the Allentown area.   7 

  Basically, why here?  Was your decision 8 

based on that you didn't think the other areas would 9 

work or ---?  Talk to me just a little bit more about 10 

that. 11 

  MR. DENAPLES: 12 

  No.  I went --- after we made all our 13 

investigation around, we wound up back in Monroe 14 

County --- Monroe County and Pike County's one of the 15 

fastest growing counties in the state, okay.  And it's 16 

within an hour and a half distance from New York City, 17 

Jersey, Philadelphia, you know, Allentown, Bethlehem 18 

and the northeast.  And it's already a tourist area. 19 

It's already, you know, designated as a tourist area 20 

that needs to be re-routed, I guess.  It needs to be 21 

picked up.  It was a natural place for it after I ran 22 

around and looked.  That was my own personal opinion. 23 

  MR. COY: 24 

  And one ---. 25 
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  MR. DENAPLES: 1 

  I believe that today. 2 

  MR. COY: 3 

  Okay.  And one last question.  What if 4 

the license --- what if you wouldn't receive the 5 

license? What happens to your facility?  Mr. McCabe 6 

has a question. 7 

  MR. MCCABE: 8 

  Go ahead and finish it.  You know the 9 

question. 10 

  MR. DENAPLES: 11 

  I'll give you the same answer that I gave 12 

you back in spring at the hearing, that if we don't 13 

get a license for some reason that I will go back to 14 

the township people and talk to them, and we'll 15 

evaluate it.  And we'll make the next business 16 

decision to find the highest and best use with the 17 

structures at that point.  But I will --- the first 18 

thing we'll go back inside of Paradise Township and 19 

the community and say, okay, here's where we're at, 20 

everybody get on the same page here and see where we 21 

go from here. 22 

  MR. COY: 23 

  Thank you.  I apologize, Commissioner. 24 

  MR. MCCABE: 25 
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  If you have to ---. 1 

  MR. DENAPLES: 2 

  First I would have to do is fire all 3 

these guys behind me. 4 

  MR. COY: 5 

  I was going to tell you, they didn't look 6 

real happy when you were answering that question. 7 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 8 

  I'm glad I'm not sitting behind him. 9 

  MR. DENAPLES: 10 

  That happens on the 20th of the ---. 11 

  MR. MCCABE: 12 

  Well, let's explore that a little more 13 

then.  If you don't get that --- why did you start 14 

building already if there was a possibility that you 15 

may or may not get this, and you're going to have to 16 

re-evaluate your business decisions then?  Why did you 17 

start building and why didn't you wait until after you 18 

got the license, like a lot of the others are doing? 19 

  MR. DENAPLES: 20 

  Okay.  I'll answer that.  I looked at it, 21 

and my past personal experience in construction and 22 

development of projects, I know as I sit here today, 23 

you cannot go get all these permits and get this 24 

project underway in eight, nine, ten months like 25 
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everybody’s saying they're going to do it.  It's 1 

impossible to get it done.  So we knew that if we 2 

wanted to be up and running, okay, a period of time  3 

--- within a year period of time, after the license 4 

was issued, which I fully understand that's the 5 

legislation there, you have to have a temporary 6 

facility up within the year, and we did not want to 7 

get involved in a temporary facility. 8 

  I sit here today and tell you, you cannot 9 

get these permits that you need, especially in the Mt. 10 

Pocono area, an environmental area, which is up there 11 

in that period of time.  We have 28 permits that we 12 

have, as we sit here today, and we have every single 13 

permit we need to open the door.  And you cannot get 14 

them in that period of time, and --- you can't get the 15 

job done.  We're --- December of '04 until now, and we 16 

just got our last permits --- and we had a team 17 

absolutely doing nothing but designated working on 18 

these permits with myself, personally, every day. 19 

  And Albert, along with our whole team 20 

here, that's all we did is work on permits.  They 21 

don't come that easy.  You're dealing with all 22 

regulatory agencies and government agencies, and it's 23 

a time consuming thing, and that's why we started 24 

ahead of time.   25 
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  MR. MCCABE: 1 

  I would like to hear your opinion on --- 2 

you discussed a little bit about how many ---. 3 

  MR. DENAPLES: 4 

  Let me just ---.  Plus I made a pledge in 5 

April that I told you, that I was going in the ground 6 

that summer, and I wanted to fulfill that commitment. 7 

I'm sorry. 8 

  MR. MCCABE: 9 

  That's okay.  We were discussing how many 10 

casinos could the Poconos handle.  Could it handle 11 

three if one was a class one, one was a class two, and 12 

one was a class three, meaning a horse racing track, 13 

destination type casino, and then a resort casino? 14 

  MR. DENAPLES: 15 

  It'll be tough.  And I don't want to say 16 

this, back to the 50 percent that goes back to the 17 

Commonwealth.  That makes it tougher.  That makes it 18 

harder. 19 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 20 

  Commissioner Marshall? 21 

  MR. MARSHALL: 22 

  Yes.  Can we shift gears a little bit?  23 

Can we talk about your training procedures for  24 

self-exclusion?  I'm not sure that that was really 25 
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addressed in the presentation, folks who want to self-1 

exclude themselves from your casino. 2 

  MR. HENDERSON: 3 

  That procedure's pretty cut and dry.  All 4 

of the United States today in the major locals, when 5 

anybody on a casino floor, you know, expresses a 6 

frustration with their gambling addiction, it is the 7 

responsibility of all individuals.  And that training 8 

process is actually the training course. 9 

  And you actually put it in place, once 10 

your staff is online, it's like the same thing you do 11 

with a cocktail waitress when it comes to serving 12 

alcohol.  It's all part of the process of training on 13 

a casino floor, all of those aspects. 14 

  MR. MARSHALL: 15 

  I understand all that, and I know --- and 16 

I'm sure you know, that there's been a little concern 17 

on our people about how the depth and breadth of where 18 

you are, are you convinced that that's worked out now? 19 

  MR. HENDERSON: 20 

  I think the process across the United 21 

States is absolutely working.  The liability is all 22 

the way up to the boards.  These major corporations 23 

have panicked people so that the enforcement of all of 24 

those procedures and policies, it's very, very 25 
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serious.  1 

  MR. MARSHALL: 2 

  So you're comfortable with it, you  3 

think ---? 4 

  MR. HENDERSON: 5 

  Oh, yeah, very serious. 6 

  MR. MARSHALL: 7 

  Thank you. 8 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 9 

  Just two quick questions.  Any others 10 

from the Board?  Okay.  Two quick questions.  Did I 11 

notice that you were in a flood plane, and that --- 12 

did I miss that?   13 

  MR. DENAPLES: 14 

  The Poconos? 15 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 16 

  Or that was just a permit that you had to 17 

get or something? 18 

  MR. DENAPLES: 19 

  No, we're not in a flood plane. 20 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 21 

  Okay.  I just --- sorry.  And the second, 22 

which is a little more detailed.  How are you going to 23 

deal with the traffic issues we talked about?  It 24 

sounds like there's still three outstanding issues 25 
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that you both --- that you identified and our traffic 1 

expert identified, and where do we stand on those and 2 

how can we get some assurance soon, that those will be 3 

dealt with? 4 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 5 

  Okay.  As I said, under contract Woodland 6 

Road, so let's kind of put that aside.  And what we're 7 

now left with is, I believe, five separate offsite 8 

intersections that were involved in the study area 9 

that we developed with PennDOT.   10 

  Three of those particular intersections, 11 

Paradise Township is the applicant, has forwarded 12 

final design plans to the Department, and it's now 13 

under review, which leaves us with three other 14 

outstanding locations.  One is the interchange at 611 15 

and intersection 298, it was Scott Run, for lack of a 16 

better term.  The other is 611 and 314, which I 17 

believe both the Department and --- we have said we 18 

were going to signalize --- there's very little 19 

physical improvements there, but it's just going to be 20 

a signalization issue.  21 

  And the five points intersection in Mt. 22 

Pocono Borough, which basically the PennDOT has said 23 

for us to get our HOPs to do all these other --- all 24 

this other work, we must resolve ourselves, because 25 
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it's a very unique problem.  So as far as Mt. Pocono 1 

Borough, they are doing an improvement project today 2 

under a separate grant, on a project that they had 3 

started, which is widening out and signalizing some of 4 

the intersections.  5 

  We are meeting with them on Tuesday 6 

night, December 11th to go over our impacts, which are 7 

about initial five percent of the traffic.  In the 8 

previous meetings we've had with the borough, we have 9 

committed to pay for incremental share of our 10 

improvements at that location.  So that we have to 11 

work out clearly with Mt. Pocono Borough, and we have 12 

to come up with an acceptable agreement with PennDOT, 13 

and we are committed to do that to put adjustments or 14 

some mitigation at the intersection of the 298 ramps 15 

and 611. 16 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 17 

  Okay.  And you're committed to helping 18 

fund those; correct? 19 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 20 

  Absolutely. 21 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 22 

  As a condition of the license, should it 23 

be granted? 24 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 25 
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  Absolutely.  That is a condition that we 1 

have agreed to participate, to fund all of those 2 

improvements. 3 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 4 

  And any further comment from our traffic 5 

consultant, Mr. Federico, on that subject? 6 

  MR. FEDERICO: 7 

  I would just add that my understanding of 8 

what has been submitted to PennDOT to date, the land 9 

uses assumed, don't appear to be entirely consistent 10 

with what was presented here today.  So there may need 11 

to be some further evaluation of the scope of those 12 

improvements with PennDOT. 13 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 14 

  I would suggest that you get us something 15 

on that in the coming weeks. 16 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 17 

  I think what he's eluding to is that the 18 

traffic study originally was based on 3,000 slot 19 

machines and 200 rooms.  And there would be half ---. 20 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 21 

  Okay. 22 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 23 

  There are some modifications.  We have to 24 

re-run certain things. 25 
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  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 1 

  I know it's not easy getting certain 2 

agencies to move, but if you could get PennDOT to help 3 

you on this, and I know they want to move this process 4 

forward, we'd like to know that. 5 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 6 

  Yes, District Five has really been 7 

responsive.  They understand ---. 8 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 9 

  Right.  It sounds like they have been. 10 

  MR. MAGNOTTA: 11 

  Necessitated us herein.  We'll work with 12 

them to see if we can get a more positive answer for 13 

you. 14 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 15 

  Okay.  And my last question is, I know it 16 

isn't part of our study, but what is the impact for 17 

you if the Catskills have gaming? 18 

  MR. DENAPLES: 19 

  Pardon? 20 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 21 

  What would the impact on the Poconos be 22 

if the Catskills get gaming? 23 

  MR. DENAPLES: 24 

  It's not an impact. 25 
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  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 1 

  No? 2 

  MR. DENAPLES: 3 

  We looked at it, and we don't feel it's 4 

an impact. 5 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 6 

  Okay.  Any other questions for Mr. 7 

DeNaples?  Okay.  We're going to --- Anne, I'll turn 8 

it over to you, and Frank. 9 

  MS. NEEB: 10 

  At this time, I think what we'd like to 11 

do is take a recess and go into executive session.  We 12 

just have some things we need to resolve, and then 13 

when we're finished with that, we'll reconvene the 14 

hearing. 15 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 16 

  Not tonight. 17 

  MS. NEEB: 18 

  Not tonight.  Unless midnight. 19 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 20 

  Except for the press.  You can stay here 21 

and wait.   22 

  ATTORNEY DONNELLY: 23 

  Mr. Chairman, to the extent it hasn't 24 

been put in the record so far, the comparability 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

109  109 

response that HRG put in, they put in a main report 1 

and a supplemental and also GBAs and, of course, our 2 

presentation. 3 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 4 

  Any objection from the staff? 5 

  ATTORNEY DONAGHUE: 6 

  No objection. 7 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 8 

  Can I have a second, please? 9 

  MR. MARSHALL: 10 

  Second. 11 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 12 

  All in favor? 13 

AYES RESPOND 14 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 15 

  Okay.  Anything else?  We're recessed.  16 

* * * * * * * * * 17 

CONCLUDED AT 4:20 P.M. 18 

* * * * * * * * 19 
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